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MISSION STATEMENT

Utilizing its solid operational and financial infrastructure,
General Maritime seeks to become the premiere choice for

global seaborne oil transportation.

In accomplishing this mission, General Maritime will
continue to provide outstanding customer service, enforce
rigorous operational standards and maintain a steadfast

commitment to safety and environmental protection.




(dollags im iousnds) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Net Voyage Revenues $701,291 $336.646 $145.567 $165.029  $108.016
Direct vessel expenses 96H18 91,981 3%.2410 42,040 23857
General & administrative 31,620 22560 12,026 9,550 £.792
Depreciation & amortiztion 100806 &4,92% 60,430 42,820 248308
Qilver operiing expenses e - o= = 5.272
Wrlte down of wessels — 18505 13,366 — .
Net gain on sale of vessels (6,570) = = == =
Operating Income 360,862 119,560 4,769 760,519 49,257
Other expense (ncome) 7901 — = 300% -
Net Interest expeRse 37,852 35003 14,501 16,292 19003
Net fnecome (loss) 305,109 84,318 (9,742) 51,221 30.282
Farmings per share
Basie $ 830 $ 229 $ w26 $ 170 8 160
Diluted 8.33 2.26 (0.26) 1.70 1.60
Net cash provided by operations activities 363,258 178,112 43637 83,442 17720
EBITDA 453,767 204,180 63,200 110,335 4095
Welghted average number of vessels 440 40.6 289 200 12.6

Pleet wiflization 96.2% 96.5% 950% 96.2% 97.3%
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Since our initial public offering over three vears ago, General Maritime has been guided by the
vision of creating a world-class tanker company with significant earnings power. In diligently pursu-
ing this vision, we have maintained a strict focus on preserving our financial flexibility and making
strategic decisions aimed at creating enduring value for the Company and its shareholders. General
Maritime's ability to achieve the highest net income in its history during 2004 underscores the merits of
this approach and demonstrates that our vision has become a reality. With net income of $315 million,
General Maritime almost quadrupled its record 2003 results, highlighting the Company’s ability to

provide shareholders with impressive earnings results.

Posting our second consecutive year of record earnings in 2004 was truly a momentous achievement
for General Maritime. Making this accomplishment even more important was the success we had
during the year of meeting other critical strategic objectives. Our considerable efforts throughout the
year have served to further solidify General Maritime’s industry leadership and position the Company

to enhance shareholder value into the future.

Successfully Consolidating the Industry

General Maritime’s success at expanding its fleet by 52% since 2002 highlights the Company’s distin-
guished reputation for consolidating the Aframax and Suezmax markets. Building on our landmark
acquisition of 19 vessels in 2003 and the overall success we have had growing the Company in an
accretive manner, General Maritime continued to successfully consolidate the mid-sized tanker indus-
try in 2004. As in the past, discipline and patience were at the forefront of our decision making and
enabled us to identify transactions that best served the interests of the Company, its shareholders
and its customers. Drawing upon our strong financial position, we seized the opportunity to acquire
the Soponata Group, a prestigious shipping company with a 57-year heritage of operating quality
tankers and serving leading oil companies. Executed at a compelling price, the acquisition provided
numerous strategic benefits such as further increasing General Maritime’s earnings potential, improv-
ing the fleet’s age profile and strengthening our commercial and technical operations through the

acquisition of Soponata’s management company.










General Maritime’s success at seamlessly integrating acquisitions continued to serve the Company
well in 2004. Our ability to integrate the Soponata acquisition in less than two months not only set
us apart in the industry, but was also instrumental in our success at taking advantage of the robust
tanker market in 2004.

Maintaining Financial Strength and Flexibility

General Maritime’s success at entering into value creating transactions, such as the Soponata acquisi-
tion in 2004, is directly linked to our strong capital structure. Following the Soponata acquisition, we
continued to concentrate on our proven method of de-leveraging our balance sheet. Acting decisively,
we utilized the cash flow generated from our expanded fleet to markedly reduce our net debt to
capitalization ratio which stood at 33% at year’s end. This significant success provided the Company
with an opportunity to once again use its strong financial position for the benefit of shareholders.
The dividend policy we announced in January 2005 is a direct result of the Company’s efforts to

preserve its balance sheet strength. T will discuss this unique policy in more detail later in the letter.

Maintaining Quality Tonnage

Consistent with our intense focus on providing customers with quality vessels that meet exacting
requirements, we made substantial progress in further modernizing our fleet in 2004. The combina-
tion of the Soponata acquisition and the sale of four single-hull vessels has resulted in a considerable
increase in the percentage of our fleet’s double-hull and double-sided vessels, during a time when
we also reduced the fleet’s average age. With 89% of its fleet double-hull or double-sided, General
Maritime remains well-positioned to operate effectively under current international regulations and

meet rigorous safety and operational standards that have become hallmarks of our operations.

Modernizing our fleet was also an important factor in the ongoing progress we have made in opti-
mizing our cost structure. Along with the implementation of cost control measures, these efforts have
enabled the Company to reduce direct vessel expenses for the year. We are pleased with the success
General Maritime continues to have in this important area and will maintain a steadfast commitment

to ensure that our cost structure is in line with historic levels.



Rewarding Shareholders with a Dividend

General Maritime’s commitment to shareholders is evident by the strategic initiatives management
has implemented, resulting in the creation of sustainable value. Reflecting this ongoing commitment,
we are proud to have initiated a unique dividend policy in January 2005. The policy, which was
the culmination of a comprehensive analysis aimed at unlocking significant value for shareholders,

represents another important milestone in General Maritime’s history.

In order to afford shareholders with the opportunity to benefit from the Company’s established earn-
ings power, as well its ongoing consolidation of the industry, the policy was designed to meet two
very crucial objectives: provide shareholders with the ability to receive substantial cash distributions
and preserve the Company’s ability to grow and renew its fleet. We are extremely pleased to have

implemented a dividend policy that achieves these vital cash distribution and growth objectives.

In terms of distributing cash to shareholders, as described in our press release of February 23, 2005,
we estimate that based on the Company’s earnings in 2004 and reserves based upon the Company’s
existing fleet at December 31, 2003, General Maritime would have been able to distribute $9.36 per
share, subject to the restricted payment covenants of our senior notes and applicable provisions of
Marshall Islands law. The fact that the 2004 distribution would have occurred during a time when
the Company completed a sizeable acquisition demonstrates that the dividend policy does not affect
General Maritime’s ability to grow. In fact, we believe that the Company has the potential to actually

create a stronger currency for future acquisitions and enhance the Company’s growth opportunities.

Outlook for 2005
Going into 2005, we are poised to draw upon the significant earnings power of General Maritime’s

fleet in order to take advantage of a tanker market that remains strong.

Complementing our ability to benefit from favorable industry fundamentals, now and in the future,
the Company is well-positioned to further consolidate the mid-sized tanker market while rewarding
shareholders with a cash dividend. The Company’s S600 million revolver combined with its 33% net
debt to capitalization ratio enables General Maritime to continue to seek accretive acquisitions that
solidify our industry leadership and further increase our profit potential. Consistent with past prac-
tices, we intend to be extremely disciplined in our approach and only enter into transactions that are

in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.




General Maritime’s relentless long-term focus on preserving its financial strength and flexibility has
been the cornerstone of the Company’s ability to create shareholder value. This tested approach will
remain a central component of our strategy as we continue to look for opportunities to create additional

shareholder value and advance our position as the leading choice for seaborne oil transportation.

In Appreciation of a Dedicated Team

General Maritime’s tremendous success during 2004 can be attributed directly to the hard work and
dedication of our global staff. The high level of trust General Maritime has earned from our major
oil clients stems from the commitment of our staff to transporting millions of barrels of oil world-
wide in a safe and environmentally friendly manner. I would like to thank our team for all their
efforts in enabling General Maritime to truly become a premiere tanker company and I look forward
to working together as we further enhance the Company’s leadership. I would also like to express
my appreciation to our shareholders and other supporters, and look forward to providing an update

on our continued progress in the future.

/i

Ny

Peter C. Georgiopoulos
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
General Maritime Corporation



Focused on its mission of building a legacy of maritime excellence, General Maritime Management, LLC
continued to adhere to the highest operational standards and exceed customers’ exacting requirements
in 2004. The trust that major oil companies and other leading charterers continue to place in General

Maritime is rooted in our ongoing success in achieving excellence.

General Maritime’s ability to meet rigorous operational and service standards reflects the Company’s
sustained commitment to maintaining a quality fleet, meeting changing regulations and attracting
qualified seafarers. I am pleased to report that we continued to make progress in each of these areas
during 2004,

General Maritime prides itself on providing customers with quality vessels and took important steps
in 2004 to further modernize its fleet. With the acquisition of the Soponata Group early in the year,
we added quality double-hull vessels that improved the age profile of our fleet and increased our
fleet’s percentage of double-hull and double-sided tankers. The sale of four single-hull vessels in the
third quarter also contributed to the success we had modernizing our fleet. By the end of 2004 these
efforts enabled us to reduce the average age of the fleet and increase the percentage of double-hull
and double-sided vessels to close to 90%. Going forward, we have ensured that General Maritime
should have access to the financial resources necessary for indefinite fleet modernization, through a

reserve established as part of the Company’s new dividend policy.

In addition to quality tonnage, General Maritime is proud to adhere 1o all applicable maritime laws
and treaties as well as aggressively meet changing regulations for the benefit of its customers. The
early submission and approval of the Company’s security plan, as mandated by the IMO’s International

Ship and Port Facility code (ISPS), highlights the Company’s commitment to effectively meeting the










challenges associated with an ever-tightening regulatory environment. I am particularly pleased that
General Maritime was among the first companies to have our plan approved, reflecting our team'’s

hard work and commitment to operational excellence.

General Maritime’s solid history of attracting qualified seafarers who embody its approach to maritime
excellence is another scurce of pride for the Company. Management’s decision in 2004 to establish
crewing offices in such places as Greece, Portugal, India, Russia, the Philippines and Singapore
has further enhanced General Maritime’s ability to standardize the recruitment and training of its
global crews. General Maritime remains committed to continuing to provide its crews with superior
standards of training. As General Maritime expands its industry leadership, training and education

will remain a priority.

General Maritimie enjoyed another year of operational excellence in 2004, and T would like to thank
our staff for their efforts. I would also like to express my appreciation for their diligence and effi-
ciency in seamlessly integrating another acquisition, which contributed to our strong results during
the year. I look forward to working with everyone as the Company continues to effectively meet our
customers’ seaborne oil transportation needs in a safe and environmentally friendly manner and take

advantage of the favorable industry fundamentals.

qﬁwﬁ

John P. Tavlarios
President and Chief Executive Officer
General Maritime Management LLC and Director
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In 2004, General Maritime's unrelenting focus on maintaining a strong capital structure continued to
be a major driver of the Company’s success. Our sustained fiscal discipline has contributed directly
10 General Maritime’s ongoing industry consolidation and enabled us to initiate a unique dividend

policy in early 2005.

General Maritime has a long history of accessing capital to support its strategic initiatives and contin-
ued to succeed in this crucial area in 2004. Our ability to secure an $825 million senior secured
credit facility on very favorable terms reflects the confidence the market places in the Company’s

industry leadership and its prospects for the future.

In addition to effectively accessing capital, the Company’s proven approach of de-leveraging its balance
sheet following an acquisition served to further enhance our financial strength and flexibility during the
year. By utilizing the substantial cash flow from our growing fleet, we were successful in significantly

reducing our net debt to capitalization ratio to 33% at year’s end.

With considerable cash on the balance sheet, General Maritime was once again in a strong position
to deploy our cash flow for the benefit of shareholders. To this end, we embarked on a comprehen-

sive and thorough review of our options, aimed at unlocking significant shareholder value.

As part of this review, we analyzed other maritime companies to determine the degree to which a
company’s dividend yield affects valuation. We examined high-, partial- and low-dividend payout
companies and discovered a strong correlation between high dividend payouts and high enterprise

value to EBITDA and share price to net earnings per share.
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These findings guided our decision in structuring our unique dividend policy. In January 2005,
we announced a dividend policy that provides shareholders with the opportunity to receive cash
in an amount equal to EBITDA less net interest expense, and cash taxes, in the event we were to
pay taxes, and less a reserve for indefinite fleet maintenance and renewal. This policy is sig-
nificant in that it provides shareholders with the opportunity to receive cash distributions while

preserving General Maritime’s ability to both renew and grow its fleet.

At General Maritime, we have a long-standing commitment to the integrity of our financial
reporting. In 2004, we continued to work diligently in this regard, particularly to ensure adherence
to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Having completed the process in March 2005, I am
pleased that General Maritime has reported that we had effective internal financial controls at
December 31, 2004,

2004 was my first year with General Maritime. I am proud to have joined such an exceptional
team, and would like to thank John Georgiopoulos who did an exceptional job in his role as
interim Chief Financial Officer. It has been a pleasure to work with everyone at General Maritime
and I look forward to contributing to the Company’s future growth as we bring the Company

forward in 2005 and beyond.

P aen

Jeffrey D. Pribor
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
General Maritime Corporation

11
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General Maritime continued to meet critical financial and administrative objectives that were instru-
mental in the Company’s ability to achieve its second consecutive year of record earnings and deliver

shareholder value in 2004.

Building on our significant past success, General Maritime has been able to seamlessly integrate the
Soponata Group acquisition into the Company. This important accomplishment enabled the Company
to add five double-hull vessels and four newbuilding contracts to the fleet while establishing our
new technical management company in Lisbon, General Maritime (Portugal) LDA. [ am proud of our
effective integration of the Soponata Group acquisition, which has enabled the Company to quickly
deploy its double-hull vessels on revenue-generating voyages and capitalize on one of the strongest

markets in recent history.

During 2004, General Maritime once again maintained a disciplined approach to preserving its
strong capital structure, a major component of the Company’s ongoing success in entering into value
creating transactions. Following the Soponata Group acquisition, we drew upon our proven tech-
nique of materially de-leveraging our balance sheet, and utilized the strong cash flow from our size-
able fleet to reduce our net debt to capitalization ratio to 33% at year’s end. We also continued to
effectively access capital and secured an $825 million senior bank facility, which was notable for
several reasons. First, the facility was secured on favorable terms, and second, it included both an
amortizing $225 million term loan and a non-amortizing $600 million revolver. With the Company’s
strong cash flow utilized to pay down debt during the year, T am pleased to report that the $600
million revolver remains untapped. I am also pleased that we continue to receive the support of
leading financial institutions such as Nordea and the impressive syndicate they assembled for the

$325 million facility.










The credit facility and the Company’s low net debt to capitalization ratio provide General Maritime
with significant financial strength and flexibility to stimulate future growth, during a time when
the Company initiated a unique dividend policy. By formulating a dividend policy that meets both
growth and cash distribution objectives, General Maritime has implemented a forward-looking

strategy for deploying the significant amount of cash that it earned in 2004.

The strong administrative and financial foundation that we established upon going public over
three years ago continues to serve as the strength of General Maritime. The Company's impressive
accomplishments during the year underscore this point and we intend to continue to draw upon our

established foundation for the future benefit of the Company and its shareholders.

I am proud to have served as General Maritime’s interim CFO for the first eight months of the year
and would like to thank both the finance and administrative teams for their hard work and dedication.
I look forward to working with the team going forward as General Maritime builds on its past

success and further solidifies its position as a world-class tanker company.

S —

John C. Georgiopoulos

Vice Prestdent, Chief Administrative Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary

General Maritime Corporation

13
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General Maritime’s discipline in maintaining significant financial strength and flexibility lies at the

core of its ability to enter into value creating transactions for its shareholders.

In 2004, General Maritime’s success at utilizing cash flow from its sizeable fleet to significantly
de-leverage its balance sheet enabled the Company to consider a range of measures to further
unlock shareholder value. After a detailed and comprehensive analysis of options, management
decided to initiate a dividend policy in January 2005. Under the policy, shareholders will receive
cash on a quarterly basis, in an amount equal to EBITDA, less net interest expense and less a reserve
for indefinite fleet maintenance and renewal. General Maritime estimates that in 2004, it would have
been able to distribute $9.36 per share subject to the restricted payment covenants of its senior notes
and applicable provisions of Marshall Islands law. Following the initial payout, which is expected

to be declared in April 2005, dividends will be declared in July, October, February and April.

Management has designed a truly unique dividend policy. The policy includes a reserve that allows
the Company to continue to adhere to its strict drydocking regimen as well as renew its fleet indefi-

nitely. Another unique component of the policy is that it preserves the Company’s ability to grow.

Consolidation remains a major driver of the Company'’s success and a critical component of its strategy
going forward. With a $600 million untapped revolver and a relatively low net debt to capitalization
ratio, General Maritime is well-positioned to further consolidate the industry during a time when it
is distributing considerable cash. In addition to its significant financial flexibility, the possibility the
dividend policy may create a stronger currency for future acquisitions bodes well for the Company’s

continued consolidation of the industry.




REWARDING SHAREHOLDERS WITH A DIVIDEND




oL r
VOSHOKING

6]

BENEFITING FROM CONSOLIDATION




A primary driver of General Maritime’s success has been its accretive consolidation of the mid-sized
tanker industry. General Maritime’s discipline in making consolidation decisions, aimed at adding
enduring value for the Company and its shareholders, has resulted in the Company’s acquisition of 25
quality vessels, four newbuilding contracts, and a world-class technical management company. This

success has enabled the Company to increase its industry leadership and enhance its profit potential.

General Maritime’s acquisition of the Soponata Group further enhanced its industry leadership, serv-
ing to further solidify the Company’s position as the second largest mid-sized tanker operator. By
seizing the opportunity to acquire the Soponata Group, General Maritime was able to grow its fleet
to include 51 vessels consisting of 26 Aframax and 25 Suezmax with a carrying capacity of 6.2 mil-
lion dwt. In addition to significantly improving the age profile of the fleet, the Soponata Group
acquisition enabled the Company to achieve numerous strategic benefits. Among these benefits is the
Company’s ability to once again utilize its sizeable fleet to better serve current customers, attract new
customers and continue to diversify operations in growth areas such as the Black Sea, North Sea and

Mediterranean Sea.

General Maritime's acquisition success has also significantly enhanced its profit potential. When the
Company acquired 19 tankers in 2003 and nine Soponata Group vessels in 2004, a primary stated
goal was to create a world-class tanker company with significant earnings power. The Company’s
success at achieving its second consecutive year of record earnings and exceeding 2003 results by
close to four times demonstrates that this goal has been realized. With a growing modern fleet,
General Maritime is well-positioned to further benefit from its fleet's earnings potential as it takes

advantage of the strong long-term global demand that is expected for oil.
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General Maritime is committed to meeting the highest quality standards for top-tier customers in the
Atlantic Basin and around the world. The Company’s success at achieving standards that exceed its
customers’ requirements has enabled General Maritime to earn a reputation for excellence and develop

lasting relationships with oil majors such as ExxonMobil, ChevronTexaco and Shell.

In 2004, operational excellence continued to permeate all aspects of General Maritime's business. The
Company’s ability to provide quality tonnage to its customers was again a primary reason for its success.
During the vear, the acquisition of the Soponata Group combined with the sale of four single-hull
vessels enabled General Maritime to reduce the average age of its fleet to 10 years as well as increase the
percentage of double-hull and double-sided vessels to 89%. General Maritime’s considerable progress
in further modernizing its fleet enables it to continue providing leading charterers with quality vessels

that comply with stringent requirements and effectively operate in a dynamic regulatory environment.

General Maritime’s intense focus on training remains a major contributor to the Company’s first-rate
operations. During 2004, the Company took significant steps that further enhanced its capabilities in
this vital sector. Management's decision to open crewing offices in such places as Portugal, India,
Greece, Russia, the Philippines and Singapore enabled the Company to not only attract and retain
seafarers that embody the Company's approach to maritime excellence but also to continue to meet

superior standards of training for the benefit of its customers.

In addition to further modernizing its fleet and enhancing its training capabilities, the Company’s
continued success in promptly meeting changing regulations demonstrates its unrelenting commitment
to operational excellence. During the year, General Maritime achieved a noteworthy accomplishment by
becoming one of the first companies to submit and receive approval of its security plan, as governed
by the IMO's International Ship and Port Facility code (ISPS).

As the Company expands its industry leadership and seeks to further take advantage of the strong
demand for seaborne oil transportation, achieving operational excellence will consistently remain at

the heart of General Maritime’s philosophy.




ACHIEVING OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
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GENERAL MaRITIME CORPORATION 2004 ANNUAL REPORT

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

Set forth below are selected historical consolidated and other data of General Maritime Corporation at the dates and for the

fiscal years shown.

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

INCOME STATEMENT DaATA
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Voyage revenues $ 701,291 § 454456 $226,357 $ 217,128 $132,012
Voyage expenses 117,955 117,810 80,790 52,099 23,996
Direct vessel operating expenses 96,818 91,981 55,241 42,140 23,857
General and administrative expenses 31,420 22,866 12,026 9,550 4,792
Other - — — — 5,272
Gain on sale of vessels 6,570) (1,490) (266) — —
Impairment charge — 18,803 13,366 — —
Depreciation and amortization 100,806 84,925 60,431 42,820 24,808

Operating income 360,862 119,561 4,769 70,519 49,287
Net interest expense 37,852 35,043 14,511 16,292 19,005
Other expense 7,901 — — 3,006 —

Net income (loss) $ 315,109 $ 84518 § (9,742) § 51,221 $ 30,282
Earnings (loss) per common share:

Basic $ 851 § 229 %3 (0206 170§ 1.60

Diluted $ 833 § 226 % (020 $ 1.70  $ 1.60
Weighted average basic shares outstanding, thousands:

Basic 37,049 36,967 36,981 30,145 18,877

Diluted 37,814 37,356 36,981 30,145 18,877
BaLANCE SHEET DATa, at end of period
(dollars in thousands)
Cash $ 46921 $ 38905 S 2681 § 17,186 § 23,523
Current assets, including cash 152,145 102,473 43,841 45,827 37,930
Total assets 1,427,261 1,263,578 782,277 850,521 438,922
Current liabilities, including current portion of long-term debt 84,120 89,771 77,519 83,970 41,880
Current portion of long-term debt 40,000 59,553 62,003 73,000 33,050
Total long-term debt, including current portion 486,597 655,670 280,011 339,600 241,785
Shareholders’ equity 890,426 568,380 481,636 495,690 186,910
OTHER FINANCIAL DATA
(dollars in thousands)
EBITDA® $ 453,767 S 204,486 $ 65,200 $ 110,333 § 74,095
Net cash provided by operating activities 363,238 178,112 43 637 83,442 47,720
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (168,477) (502,919 2,034 (261,803) (85,865)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (186,745) 361,031 (60,176) 172,024 54,826
Capital expenditures

Vessel sales (purchases), gross including deposits (165,796) (501,242) 2,251 (256,135)  (85,500)

Drydocking or capitalized survey or improvement costs (17,050) (14,137) (13,546) (3,321 (3,168)
Weighted average long-term debt, including current portion 650,196 601,086 313,537 283,255 233,010

(continued)




Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
FLEET DATA
Total number of vessels at end of period 43.0 43.0 28.0 29.0 14.0
Average number of vessels™ 44.0 40.6 289 21.0 12.6
Total voyage days for fleet® 15,482 14,267 10,010 7.374 4,474
Total time charter days for fleet 4,372 2,804 1,490 1,991 2,174
Total spot market days for fleet 11,111 11,463 8,520 5,383 2,300
Total calendar days for fleet® 16,123 14,818 10,536 7,664 4,599
Fleet utilization™ 96.0% 96.3% 95.0% 96.2% 97.3%
AVERAGE Dany ResuLTs
Time charter equivalent® $ 37676 S 23596 $ 14542 $ 22380 $ 24,143
Direct vessel operating expenses” 6,005 6,207 5,243 5,499 5,187
General and administrative expenses® 1,949 1,543 1,136 1,246 1,042
Total vessel operating expenses® 7,954 7,750 6,379 6,745 6,229
EBITDA 28,144 13,800 7.437 14,788 17,257
EBITDA RECONCILIATION
(dollars in thousands)
Net Income $ 315,109 $ 84,318 $ (9,742) § 51,221 $ 30,282
+ Interest expense 37,852 35,043 14,511 16,292 19,005
+ Depreciation and amortization 100,806 84,925 60,431 42,820 24,808
EBITDA $ 453,767 $ 204,486 §$ 65,200 §$ 110,333 S 74,095

(1) EBITDA represents net income plus net interest expense and depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is included because it is used by management and certain
investors as a measure of operating performance. EBITDA is used by analysts in the shipping industry as a common performance measure to compare results
across peers. Management of the Company uses EBITDA as a performance measure in consolidating monthly internal financial statements and is presented
for review at our board meetings. The Company believes that EBITDA is useful to investors as the shipping industry is capital intensive which often brings
significant cost of financing. EBITDA is not an item recognized by GAAP, and should not be considered as an alternative to net income, operating income or
any other indicator of a company’s operating performance required by GAAP. The definition of EBITDA used here may not be comparable to that used by
other companies.

(2) Average number of vessels is the number of vessels that constituted our fleet for the relevant period, as measured by the sum of the number of days each
vessel was part of our fleet during the period divided by the number of calendar days in that period.

(3) Voyage days for fleet are the total days our vessels were in our possession for the relevant period net of off hire days associated with major repairs, drydockings
or special or intermediate surveys.

(4) Calendar days are the rotal days the vessels were in our possession for the relevant period including off hire days associated with major repairs, drydockings or
special or intermediate surveys.

(5) Fleet utilization is the percentage of time that our vessels were available for revenue generating voyage days, and is determined by dividing voyage days by
calendar days for the relevant period.

(6) Time charter equivalent, or TCE, is a measure of the average daily revenue performance of a vessel on a per voyage basis. Our method of calculating TCE is
consistent with industry standards and is determined by dividing net voyage revenue by voyage days for the relevant time period. Net vovage revenues are
voyage revenues minus voyage expenses. Voyage expenses primarily consist of port, canal and fuel costs that are unique to a particular voyage, which would
otherwise be paid by the charterer under a time charter contract.

(7) Daily direct vessel operating expenses, or DVOE, is calculated by dividing DVOE, which includes crew costs, provisions, deck and engine stores, lubricating
oil, insurance and maintenance and repairs, by calendar days for the relevant time period.

(8) Daily general and administrative expense is calculated by dividing general and administrative expenses by calendar days for the relevant time period.

(9) Total vessel operating expenses, or TVOE, is a measurement of our total expenses associated with operating our vessels. Daily TVOE is the sum of daily direct
vessel operating expenses, or DVOE, and daily general and administrative expenses.
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The following is a discussion of our financial condition at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 and our results of operations
comparing the vears ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 and
the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. You should
read this section together with the consolidated financial state-
ments including the notes to those financial statements for the
years mentioned above.

We are a leading provider of international seaborne
crude oil transportation services with one of the largest mid-
sized tanker fleets in the world. As of December 31, 2004 our
fleet consisted of 43 tankers (26 Aframax and 17 Suezmax
tankers) with a total cargo carrying capacity of 3.2 million
deadweight tons. In addition, we have four Suezmax tankers
scheduled to be delivered between 2006 and early 2008
comprising an additional 0.6 million deadweight tons.

SpoT AND TIME CHARTER DEPLOYMENT

We actively manage the deployment of our fleet between spot
market voyage charters, which generally last from several days
to several weeks, and time charters, which can last up to sev-
eral years. A spot market voyage charter is generally a contract
to carry a specific cargo from a load port to a discharge port
for an agreed-upon total amount. Under spot market voyage
charters, we pay voyage expenses such as port, canal and
fuel costs. A time charter is generally a contract to charter a
vessel for a fixed period of time at a set daily rate. Under time
charters, the charterer pays voyage expenses such as port,
canal and fuel costs.

Vessels operating on time charters provide more
predictable cash flows, but can yield lower profit margins than
vessels operating in the spot market during periods character-
ized by favorable market conditions. Vessels operating in the
spot market generate revenues that are less predictable but
may enable us to capture increased profit margins during
periods of improvements in tanker rates although we are

exposed to the risk of declining tanker rates. We are
constantly evaluating opportunities to increase the number of
our tankers deployed on time charters, but only expect to
enter into additional time charters if we can obtain contract
terms that satisfy our criteria.

NET VOYAGE REVENUES AS PERFORMANCE MEASURE

For discussion and analysis purposes only, we evaluate
performance using net voyage revenues. Net voyage revenues
are voyage revenues minus voyage expenses. Voyage expenses
primarily consist of port, canal and fuel costs that are unique
to a particular voyage, which would otherwise be paid by a
charterer under a time charter. We believe that presenting
voyage revenues, net of voyage expenses, neutralizes the vari-
ability created by unique costs associated with particular
voyages or the deployment of tankers on time charter or on
the spot market and presents a more accurate representation
of the revenues generated by our tankers.

Our voyage revenues and voyage expenses are recog-
nized ratably over the duration of the voyages and the lives of
the charters, while direct vessel expenses are recognized
when incurred. We recognize the revenues of time charters
that contain rate escalation schedules at the average rate during
the life of the contract. We calculate time charter equivalent,
or TCE, rates by dividing net voyage revenue by voyage days
for the relevant time period. We also generate demurrage rev-
enue, which represents fees charged to charterers associated
with our spot market voyages when the charterer exceeds the
agreed-upon time required to load or discharge a cargo. We
allocate corporate income and expenses, which include
general and administrative and net interest expense, to tankers
on a pro rata basis based on the number of months that we
owned a tanker. We calculate daily direct vessel operating
expenses and daily general and administrative expenses for
the relevant period by dividing the total expenses by the
aggregate number of calendar days that we owned each tanker
for the period. :



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Margin analysis for the indicated items as a percentage of net
voyage revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 are set forth in the table below.

Income Statement Margin Analysis

(% of Net Voyage Reveniies)
Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Income Statement Data

Net voyage revenues™ 100%  100%  100%
Direct vessel expenses 16.6 273 37.9
General and administrative 5.4 6.8 8.3
Impairment (gain on sale) of vessels 1.2 52 9.0
Depreciation and amortization 17.3 252 415
Operating income 61.9 355 3.3
Net interest expense 6.5 10.4 10.0
Other expense 1.4 — —
Net income (loss) 54.0 251 6.7

(1) Net voyage revenues are voyage revenues minus voyage expenses. Voyage expenses
primarily consist of port, canal and fuel costs that are unique to a particular voyage,
which would otherwise be paid by a charterer under a time charter.

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in ibousands) 2004 2003 2002

Voyage revenues $ 701,291 $ 454,456 $226,357
Voyage expenses 117,955 (117,810 (80,790)
Net voyage revenues $ 583,336 § 336,646 $145,567

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to the Year
Ended December 31, 2003

Voyage Revenues. Voyage revenues increased by $246.8 mil-
lion, or 54.3%, to $701.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to $454.5 million for the prior year. This
increase is due to the stronger spot market for Suezmax and
Aframax tankers during the year ended December 31, 2004
compared to the prior year as well as an 8.4% increase in the
average size of our fleet and the greater proportion of our
fleet during 2004 that is comprised of Suezmax tankers, which
usually generate more voyage revenue than Aframax tankers.
The average size of our fleet increased to 44.0 (25.0 Aframax,
19.0 Suezmax) tankers during the year ended December 31,

2004 compared to 40.6 tankers (25.4 Aframax, 15.2 Suezmax)
during the prior year. While one of our strategic initiatives is
to grow by acquisition, there can be no assurance that we will
grow our fleet in 2005.

Voyage Expenses. Voyage expenses were relatively unchanged,
at $118.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
compared to $117.8 million for the prior year. Substantially all
of our voyage expenses relate to spot charter voyages, under
which the vessel owner is responsible for voyage expenses such
as fuel and port costs. During the year ended December 31,
2004, the number of days our vessels operated under spot
charters decreased by 352, or 3.1%, to 11,111 days (4,738 days
Aframax, 6,373 days Suezmax) from 11,463 days (6,514 days
Aframax, 4,949 days Suezmax) during the prior year. Voyage
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 did not
decrease in proportion to the decrease in number of spot days
due to the increased proportion during 2004 of the number of
spot days being attributable to Suezmax vessels. Suezmax
vessels generally earn higher daily voyage revenue than do
Aframax vessels but also incur higher voyage expenses
particularly with respect to fuel consumption.

Net Voyage Revenues. Net voyage revenues, which are voyage
revenues minus voyage expenses, increased by $246.7 million,
or 73.3%, to $583.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to $336.6 million for the prior year. This
increase is due to the stronger spot market for Suezmax and
Aframax tankers during the year ended December 31, 2004
compared to the prior year as well as an 8.4% increase in the
average size of our fleet and the greater proportion of our
fleet during 2004 that is comprised of Suezmax tankers, which
usually generate more vovage revenue than Aframax tankers.
Our average TCE rates improved 59.7% to $37,676 during the
year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $23,596 during
the year ended December 31, 2003. The average size of our
fleet increased 8.4% to 44.0 tankers (25.0 Aframax, 19.0
Suezmax) for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to
40.6 tankers (25.4 Aframax, 15.2 Suezmax) for the prior year.
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The following is additional data pertaining to net voyage revenues:

Year Ended December 31, Increase %
2004 2003 (Decrease) Change
Net voyage revenue (in thousands):
Time charter:
Aframax $ 82,894 $ 52,012 $ 30,882 59.4%
Suezmax 3,902 6,731 (2,829 (42.0)%
Total 86,796 58,743 28,053 47.8%
Spot charter:
Aframax 175,791 141,475 34,316 24.3%
Suezmax 320,749 136,428 184,321 135.1%
Total 496,540 277,903 218,637 78.7%
Total net voyage revenue $583,336 $3306,646 $246,690 73.3%
Vessel operating days:
Time charter:
Aframax 4,182 2,457 1,725 70.2%
Suezmax 189 347 (158) “45.35%
Total 4,371 2,804 1,567 55.9%
Spot charter:
Aframax 4,738 6,514 (1,776) 27.30%
Suezmax 6,373 4,949 1,424 28.8%
Total 11,111 11,463 (352) (3.1)%
Total vessel operating days 15,482 14,267 1,215 8.5%
Average number of vessels 44.0 40.6 34 8.4%
Time charter equivalent (TCE):
Time charter:
Aframax $ 19,822 $ 21,172 $ (1,350) (6.4)%
Suezmax $ 20,646 $ 19,402 $ 1,244 6.4%
Combined $ 19,857 $ 20,953 $ (1,09 (5.20%
Spot charter:
Aframax $ 37,099 $ 21,719 $ 15,381 70.8%
Suezmax $ 50,331 $ 27,569 $ 22,763 82.6%
Combined $ 44,689 $ 24,243 $ 20,446 84.3%
Total TCE $ 37,676 $ 23,596 $ 14,080 59.7%

The following table summarizes the portion of our
fleet on time charter as of March 9, 2005:

Vessel Average
Vessel Type Expiration Date Daily Rate®
Genmar Pericles Aframax  October 3, 2005 $19,700
Genmar Trust Aframax  October 15, 2005 $19,700
Genmar Spirit Aframax  November 5, 2005 $19,700
Genmar Hector Aframax  October 31, 2005 $19,700
Genmar Challenger  Aframax  December 6, 2005 $19,700
Genmar Trader Aframax  December 16, 2005 $19,700
Genmar Champ Aframax  January 10, 2006 $19,700
Genmar Star Aframax  January 25, 2006 $19,700
Genmar Endurance Aframax  February 13, 2006 $19,700
Genmar Princess Aframax  May 9, 2005 $25,000
Genmar Constantine  Aframax  July 9, 2005 $28,355

(1) Before brokers' commissions.

Direct Vessel Expenses. Direct vessel expenses, which include
crew costs, provisions, deck and engine stores, lubricating oil,
insurance, maintenance and repairs increased by $4.8 million,
or 5.3%, to $96.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
compared to $92.0 million for the prior year. This increase is
primarily due to the growth of our fleet, which increased 8.4%
during the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the
prior year. This increase is offset by a decrease in mainte-
nance and repairs during the year erided December 31, 2004
on our Suezmax vessels as compared to the prior year as well
as the timing of certain purchases, maintenance and repair
costs. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2004,
the Company sold four Suezmax vessels which had higher
historic operating costs than the other vessels in our fleet. On



a daily basis, direct vessel expenses per vessel decreased by
$202, or 3.3%, to $6,005 ($5,676 Aframax, $6,438 Suezmax)
for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $6,207
(85,679 Aframax, $7,081 Suezmax) for the prior year, primarily
as the result of a decrease in maintenance and repairs on our
Suezmax vessels. Although daily direct vessel operating
expenses have decreased during 2004 compared to 2003,
there can be no assurance that daily direct vessel operating
expenses will not increase during 2005.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and adminis-
trative expenses increased by $8.5 million, or 37.4%, to
$31.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared
to $22.9 million for the prior year. The primary components of
this increase are: (a) $2.4 million of lease payments and
expenses associated with our lease of an aircraft which the
Company entered into during February 2004; (b) $1.7 million
of office related expenses of General Maritime Management
(Portugal) Lda which we acquired during April 2004; (0 a
$1.7 million increase in payroll expenses (salaries, benefits,
incentive bonus and amortization of restricted stock awards)
in our offices in New York and Greece in connection with the
operation of a larger fleet during the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to the prior year; and (d) a $1.4 million
increase in professional fees during the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to the prior year primarily due to increases in
accounting fees associated with compliance with Section 404
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, General and administra-
tive expenses as a percentage of net voyage revenues
decreased 1o 3.4% for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
6.8% for the prior year. Daily general and administrative
expenses per vessel increased $406, or 26.3%, to $1,949
for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $1,543
for the prior year.

We anticipate that certain general and administrative
expenses will increase during 2003. During 20035 as compared
to prior years, a greater portion of the bonus of our Chief
Executive Officer and other senior officers will be comprised
of restricted stock awards, rather than cash. During February
2005, restricted stock awards were granted. The non-cash
amortization associated with this grant will be approximately
$4.0' million during 2005. In addition, cash expenses are
expected to increase during 2005 compared to 2004 as a result
of the relocation of our headquarters in New York to a larger
office space to accommodate the Company’s continued growth
as well as General Maritime Management (Portugal) Lda being
operated for a full year.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization,
which include depreciation of tankers as well as amortization of
drydocking, special survey and loan fees, increased by $15.9 mil-
lion, or 18.7%, to $100.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to $84.9 million for the prior year. This
increase is primarily due to the growth in the average number
of tankers in our fleet, which increased 8.4% during the vyear
ended December 31, 2004 compared to the prior year as well
as an increase in drydock amortization described in more
detail below.

Amortization of drydocking increased by $4.7 million,
or 66.6%, to $11.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to $7.1 million for the prior year. This increase
includes amortization associated with $17.1 million of capital-
ized expenditures relating to our tankers for the year ended
December 31, 2004 as well as a full year of amortization
associated with $14.1 million of capitalized drydocking for the
prior year. We anticipate that the amortization associated with
drydocking our vessels will increase in the future, as vessels
we acquired during 2001, 2003 and 2004 are drydocked for
the first time.

Amortization of deferred financing costs decreased by
$0.3 million, or 9.4%, to $3.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 compared to $3.5 million for the prior vear.
This decrease is the result of amortization during the second
half of 2004 associated with deferred financing costs paid on
the 2004 Credit Facility which was lower than the amortization
on the deferred loan costs associated with the three credit
facilities which were refinanced. At the time of the refinancing,
the unamortized deferred financing costs associated with the
three refinanced credit facilities were written off.

Gain on Sale of Vessels. During July 2004, we agreed to sell
four of our single-hull Suezmax vessels in order to reduce the
number of single-hull vessels in the Company’s fleet. These
vessels were sold during August and October 2004 for aggre-
gate net proceeds of approximately $84.2 million, resulting in
a gain on sale of vessels of $6.6 million.

Impairment Charge/Gain on Sale of Vessels. During 2003,
we sold two vessels held for sale as of December 31, 2002,
resulting in an aggregate gain on sale of vessels of $2.7 mil-
lion. Also during 2003, three double-bottom Aframax vessels
acquired in 2003 were sold for an aggregate loss on sale of
vessels of $1.2 million. Of these three vessels, two were deliv-
ered to their new owners in 2003 and one was delivered to its
new owner in February 2004.

29
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The Company had no impairment charges relating
to any of the vessels in its fleet during the vear ended
December 31, 2004.

In December 2003, the IMO adopted a proposed
amendment to the International Convention for the Prevention
of Pollution from Ships to accelerate the phase-out of certain
single-hull tankers from 2015 to 2010 unless the flag state
extends the date to 2015, Management determined that the
useful lives of its nine single-hull tankers would end in 2010,
which is four to six years earlier than the 25-year useful lives
the vessels had previously been ascribed. Because of the
reduction in the useful lives of these single-hull tankers and
the consequent reduction in projected cash flows, it was
determined that an aggregate impairment charge of $18.8 mil-
lion was required on five tankers, which represented the

amount by which the carrying value of these tankers

exceeded their fair value as determined by an independent
third party appraiser.

Net Interest Expense. Net interest expense increased by
$2.8 million, or 8.0%, to $37.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 compared to $33.0 million for the prior
year. This increase is primarily the result of an 8.2% increase
in our weighted average outstanding debt of $650.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $601.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Otber Expense. On July 1, 2004, we entered into an $825 mil-
lion credit facility, refinancing our First, Second and Third
Credit Facilities. Upon consummation of this refinancing,
unamortized deferred financing costs associated with the First,
Second and Third Credit Facilities aggregating $7.9 million
was written off as a non-cash charge in July 2004.

Net Income. Net income was $315.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 compared to net income of $84.5 million
for the prior year.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to the Year
Ended December 31, 2002

Voyage Revenues. Voyage revenues increased by $228.1 mil-
lion, or 100%, to $454.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to $226.4 million for the prior year. $153.6 mil-
lion of this increase is due to the acquisition of 14 Suezmax
tankers and five Aframax tankers during 2003. In addition,
voyage revenues increased by $74.5 million on the 28 tankers
which were part of our fleet prior to January 1, 2003 to

$300.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared
10 $226.4 million during the prior year, primarily as a result of
better freight rates. The average size of our fleet increased
40.6% to 40.6 (254 Aframax, 15.2 Suezmax) tankers during
the vear ended December 31, 2003 compared to 28.9 tankers
(239 Aframax, 5.0 Suezmax) during the prior year.

Voyage Expenses. Voyage expenses increased $37.0 million,
or 45.8%, to $117.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to $80.8 million for the prior year. $41.9 mil-
lion of this increase is due to the acquisition of 14 Suezmax
tankers and five Aframax tankers during 2003. In addition,
voyage expenses decreased by $4.9 million on the tankers
which were part of our fleet prior to January 1, 2003 to
$75.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared
to $80.8 million during the prior year, due primarily to a 534
day increase in the number of days these vessels were on
time charter during 2003 as compared to 2002. Overall, the
number of days that all of our tankers were under time char-
ter contracts increased to 2,804 days for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to 1,490 days for the prior year.
The number of days that our tankers, including those acquired
during 2003, operated in the spot market increased to 11,463
for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to 8,520 days
for the prior vear. Typically, tankers operating on the spot
market incur higher voyage expenses than those operating on
time charter contract, as the owner, not the charterer, is
responsible for voyage expenses.

Net Voyage Revenues. Net voyage revenues, which are voyage
revenues minus voyage expenses, increased by $191.0 million,
or 131%, to $336.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to $145.6 million for the prior year. $111.7 mil-
lion of this increase is due to the acquisition of 14 Suezmax
tankers and five Aframax tankers during 2003. In addition,
net voyage revenues increased by $79.3 million on the
tankers which were part of our fleet prior to January 1, 2003
to $2249 million for the year ended December 31, 2003
compared to $145.6 million during the prior year, primarily as
a result of better freight rates. Our average TCE rates improved
62.3% to $23,596 during the year ended December 31, 2003
compared to $14,542 during the year ended December 31,
2002. The average size of our fleet increased 40.6% to 40.6
tankers (25.4 Aframax, 15.2 Suezmax) for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to 289 tankers (23.9 Aframax,
5.0 Suezmax) for the prior year.




The following is additional data pertaining to net voyage revenues:

Year Ended December 31, Increase %
2003 2002 (Decrease) Change
Net voyage revenue (in thousands):
Time charter:
Aframax $ 52,012 $ 28,335 $ 23,677 83.6%
Suezmax 6,731 — 6,731 N/M
Total 38,743 28,335 30,408 107.3%
Spot charter:
Aframax 141,475 89,524 51,951 58.0%
Suezmax 136,428 27,708 108,720 392 .4%
Total 277,903 117,232 160,671 137.1%
Total net voyage revenue $336,646 $145,567 $191,079 131.3%
Vessel operating days:
Time charter:
Aframax 2,457 1,490 967 64.9%
Suezmax 347 — 347 N/M
Total 2,804 1,490 1,314 88.2%
Spot charter:
Aframax 6,514 6,722 (208) B.1)%
Suezmax 4,949 1,798 3,151 175.3%
Total 11,463 8,520 2,943 34.5%
Total vessel operating days 14,267 10,010 4,257 42.5%
Average number of vessels 40.6 289 11.7 40.6%
Time charter equivalent (TCE):
Time charter:
Aframax $ 21,172 $ 19,017 $ 2,155 11.3%
Suezmax $ 19,402 N/M N/M N/M
Combined $ 20,953 $ 19,017 $ 1,936 10.2%
Spot charter:
Aframax § 21,719 $ 13,318 § 8,401 63.1%
Suezmax $ 27,569 $ 15,410 $ 12,159 78.9%
Combined $ 24,243 $ 13,760 $ 10,483 76.2%
Total TCE $ 23,596 $ 14,542 $ 9,054 62.3%

Direct Vessel Expenses. Direct vessel expenses, which include
crew costs, provisions, deck and engine stores, lubricating oil,
insurance, maintenance and repairs increased by $36.8 million,
or 665%, to $92.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to $55.2 million for the prior year. This
increase is primarily due to the growth of our fleet, which
increased 40.6% for the same periods, as well as increases in
maintenance and repairs, crew costs and insurance. The
increase in maintenance and repairs is attributable to major
repairs made on four tankers during 2003 as well as an
increase in the value of the Euro against the U.S. dollar which

made Euro-denominated expenditures in 2003 more costly. The
increase in crew costs is attributable to Euro-denominated
crew and officer wages. The increase in insurance costs is due
to increases in hull and machinery and protection and indemnity
which we believe are industry wide. In addition, a portion of
this 40.6% increase in the size of our fleet relates to the acqui-
sition of Suezmax vessels which, although generally generating
higher TCE rates, are more costly to operate than Aframax
vessels. On a daily basis, direct vessel expenses per vessel
increased by $964, or 18.4%, to $6,207 (85,679 Aframax,
$7,081 Suezmax) for the year ended December 31, 2003
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compared to $5,243 ($5,090 Aframax, $5,973 Suezmax) for the
prior year, primarily as the result of an increase in mainte-
nance and repairs, crew costs and insurance costs as well as
the increase in the percentage of our fleet that consists of
Suezmax vessels.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and adminis-
trative expenses increased by $10.9 million, or 90.1%, to
$22.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared
to $12.0 million for the prior year. This increase is primarily
attributable to the growth of our fleet during 2003. In connec-
tion with the 40.6% increase in the size of our fleet in 2003,
there was a $6.7 million increase in payroll expenses (salaries,
benefits and incentive bonus), a $1.8 million increase in costs
at General Maritime Management (Hellas) Ltd. (formerly
United Overseas Tankers Ltd) (much of which costs are
denominated in Euros), a $1.0 million increase in general and
administrative expenses of our vessel owning subsidiaries,
and $0.5 million in costs at an office we opened in the United
Kingdom in connection with the growth of our fleet during
2003. General and administrative expenses as a percentage
of net voyage revenues decreased to 6.8% for the vyear
ended December 31, 2003 from 8.3% for the prior year. Daily
general and administrative expenses per vessel increased
$407, or 35.8%, to $1,543 for the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to $1,136 for the prior year.

Impairment Charge/Gain on Sale of Vessels. During 2003,
we sold two vessels held for sale as of December 31, 2002,
resulting in an aggregate gain on sale of vessels of $2.7 million.
Also during 2003, three double-bottom Aframax vessels
acquired in 2003 were sold for an aggregate loss on sale
of vessels of $1.2 million. Of these three vessels, two were
delivered to their new owners in 2003 and one was delivered
to its new owner in February 2004.

In December 2003, the IMO adopted a proposed
amendment to the International Convention for the Prevention
of Pollution from Ships to accelerate the phase-out of certain
single-hull tankers from 2015 to 2010 unless the flag state
extends the date to 2015. Management determined that the
useful lives of its nine single-hull tankers would end in
2010, which is four to six years earlier than the 25-year
useful lives the vessels had previously been ascribed. Because
of the reduction in the useful lives of these single-hull
tankers and the consequent reduction in projected cash flows,
it was determined that an aggregate impairment charge of
$18.8 million was required on five tankers, which represented
the amount by which the carrying value of these tankers
exceeded their fair value as determined by an independent
third party appraiser.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization,
which include depreciation of tankers as well as amortization of
drydocking, special survey and loan fees, increased by $24.5 mil-
lion, or 40.5%, to $84.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to $60.4 million for the prior year. This
increase is primarily due to the growth in the average number
of tankers in our fleet, which increased 40.6% during the year
ended December 31, 2003 compared to the prior vear.

Amortization of drydocking increased by $2.8 million,
or 62.9%, to $7.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003
compared to $4.3 million for the prior year. This increase includes
amortization associated with $14.1 million of capitalized expen-
ditures relating to our tankers for the year ended December 31,
2003 as well as a full year of amortization associated with
$13.5 million of capitalized drydocking for the prior year.

Amortization of deferred financing costs increased by
$2.0 million, or 132%, to $3.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to $1.5 million for the prior year.
This increase includes amortization associated with $14.6 mil-
lion of deferred financing costs capitalized during 2003.

Net Interest Expense. Net interest expense increased by $20.5 mil-
lion, or 141%, to $35.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to $14.5 million for the prior year. $19.6 million
of this increase in net interest expense during the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to the year ended December 31,
2002 is due to the $250 million of Senior Notes we issued in
March 2003 in connection with the acquisition of 19 vessels, which
have a 10% coupon which is significantly higher than the interest
rates on the remainder of our long-term debt. The remainder of
this increase is the result of a 30.9% increase in our weighted
average outstanding debt (excluding the Senior Notes) of
$411.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared
to $314.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Net Income. Net income was $84.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to net loss of $(9.7) million for
the prior year.

LiQuipiTy aND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Sources and Uses of Funds; Cash Management

Since our formation, our principal sources of funds have been
equity financings, issuance of long-term debt securities, oper-
ating cash flows and long-term bank borrowings. Qur principal
use of funds has been capital expenditures to establish and
grow our fleet, maintain the quality of our tankers, comply
with international shipping standards and environmental laws
and regulations, fund working capital requirements and make
principal repayments on outstanding loan facilities.




Qur practice has been to acquire tankers using a
combination of funds received from equity investors, bank
debt secured by mortgages on our tankers and shares of the
common stock of our shipowning subsidiaries, and long-term
debt securities. Since our payment of dividends is expected to
decrease our available cash, while we expect to use our oper-
ating cash flows and borrowings to fund acquisitions, if any,
on a short-term basis, we also intend to review debt and
equity financing alternatives to fund such acquisitions. Our
business is capital intensive and its future success will depend
on our ability to maintain a high-quality fleet through the
acquisition of newer tankers and the selective sale of older
tankers. These acquisitions will be principally subject to
management’s expectation of future market conditions as well
as our ability to acquire tankers on favorable terms.

We expect o rely on operating cash flows as well as
long-term borrowings and future equity offerings to imple-
ment our growth plan and our dividend policy. We believe
that our current cash balance as well as operating cash flows
and available borrowings under our credit facilities will be
sufficient to meet our liquidity needs for the next year.

Qur operation of ocean-going tankers carries an
inherent risk of catastrophic marine disasters and property
losses caused by adverse severe weather conditions, mechanical
failures, human error, war, terrorism and other circumstances
or events. In addition, the transportation of crude oil is sub-
ject to business interruptions due to political circumstances,
hostilities among nations, labor strikes and boycoits. Our
current insurance coverage includes (1) protection and indem-
nity insurance coverage for tort liability, which is provided
by mutual protection and indemnity associations, (2) hull
and machinery insurance for actual or constructive loss from
collision, fire, grounding and engine breakdown, (3) war risk
insurance for confiscation, seizure, capture, vandalism, sabo-
tage and other war-related risks and (4) loss of hire insurance
for loss of revenue for up to 90 days resulting from a tanker
being off hire for all of our tankers.

Dividend Policy

On January 26, 2005 we announced that our board of direc-
tors has initiated a cash dividend policy. Under the policy, we
plan to declare quarterly dividends to shareholders in April,
July, October and February of each year based on our EBITDA
after interest expense and reserves, as established by the
board of directors. These reserves, which the board of direc-
tors expects to review on at least an annual basis, will rake
into account normal maintenance and drydocking of existing
vessels as well as capital expenditures for vessel acquisitions
o ensure the indefinite renewal of our fleet. We expect that
our estimated maintenance and renewal capital expenditure

reserve will be $100 million in 2005. Our board of directors
expects to review these reserves from time to time and at least
annually, taking into account the remaining useful life and asset
value of the fleet, among other factors. We expect to declare
our initial quarterly dividend following the announcement of its
first quarter 2005 results during the fourth week of April 2005.

The indenture of our Senior Notes generally allows us
to pay dividends and other “restricted payments” up to an
amount equal to 50% of the cumulative net income earned
since the first quarter of 2003 plus an additional $235 million.
We are currently exploring various options for ensuring our
ability to pay dividends as defined by the new dividend policy,
and will review available equity and debt financing alterna-
tives from time to time. Any dividends paid will be subject to
the consent of our lenders under our 2004 Credit Facility and
applicable provisions of Marshall Islands law.

Debt Financings

2004 Credit Facility

On July 1, 2004, we closed on an $825 million senior secured
bank financing facility, or the 2004 Credit Facility, consisting of
a term loan of $225 million and a revolving loan of $600 million.
The term loan has a five vear maturity at a rate of LIBOR plus
1.0% and amortizes on a quarterly basis with 19 payments of
$10 million and one payment of $35 million. The revolving
loan component, which does not amortize, has a five year
maturity at a rate of LIBOR plus 1.0% on the used portion and a
0.5% commitment fee on the unused portion. As of December 31,
2004, the 2004 Credit Facility is secured by all of the ships in
the Company’s 43 vessel fleet.

Concurrent with the closing of the 2004 Credit Facility,
pursuant to which we borrowed $225 million under the term
loan and $290 million under the revolving credit facility, we
retired our existing First, Second and Third Credit Facilities,
described below, in a series of transactions we refer to as the
2004 Refinancings. At the time of the 2004 Refinancings, the
2004 Credit Facility was secured by the 42 vessels which
collateralized the First, Second and Third Credit Facilities and
the five vessels which we acquired in April 2004 and July 2004.
In addition, each of our subsidiaries which has an owner-
ship interest in any tanker vessel that is secured by the
2004 Credit Facility has provided unconditional guaranties of
all amounts owing under the 2004 Credit Facility. Deferred
financing costs incurred relating to the 2004 Credit Facility
aggregated $6.9 million.

Upon consummating the 2004 Refinancings, unamor-
tized deferred financing costs associated with the First, Second
and Third Credit Facilities aggregating $7.9 million were written
off as a non-cash charge in July 2004. This non-cash charge is
classified as other expense on the statement of operations,
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During August and October 2004, we sold four vessels
(Genmar Harriet, Genmar Centaur, Genmar Traveller and
Genmar Transporter) that were part of the collateral of the
2004 Credit Facility. Pursuant to an amendment to the 2004
Credit Facility, we are permitted, until August 2005 to substi-
tute as collateral future vessel acquisitions with a fair value
equivalent to the vessels sold. Had this amendment not been
agreed to, we would, upon the sale of the four vessels in
August and October 2004, have had to repay approximately
$13.1 million associated with the $225 million term loan and
the $600 million revolving credit facility would have been
permanently reduced by approximately $35.2 million. In
accordance with the amendment to the 2004 Credit Facility,
we placed approximately $13.1 million in escrow which will
be returned to us if cjollateral is substituted as described
above. This amount of cash held in escrow is classified as
other assets on our balance sheet. If such collateral is not fully
provided, on August 31, 2005, the remaining amount held in
the escrow account will be used to repay a portion of the
term loan. With respect to the revolving credit facility, approx-
imately $35.2 million is currently not available to be drawn
until such substitute collateral is provided. To the extent
substitute collateral is not provided by August 31, 2005, the
revolving credit facility will be permanently reduced.

The 2004 Credit Facility is secured by all of the ships in
our current 43 vessel fleet and $13.1 million cash held in escrow.

First, Second and Third Credit Facilities—Refinanced by

the 2004 Credit Facility

The First Credit Facility was comprised of a $200 million term
loan and a $100 million revolving loan. The First Credit Facility
was to mature on June 15, 2006. The First Credit Facility bore
interest at LIBOR plus 1.5%. We were obligated to pay a fee of
0.625% per annum on the unused portion of the revolving
loan on a quarterly basis. Due to the sale of three of the
Aframax tankers securing the First Credit Facility, the revolv-
ing loan facility was reduced to $96.5 million.

The Second Credit Facility consisted of a $115 million
term loan and a $50 million revolving loan. The Second Credit
Facility was to mature on June 27, 2006. The Second Credit
Facility bore interest at LIBOR plus 1.5%. We were obligated
to pay a fee of 0.625% per annum on the unused portion of
the revolving loan on a quarterly basis.

On March 11, 2003 in connection with the Metrostar
acquisition, we entered into commitments for $450 million in
credit facilities. These credit facilities were comprised of a first
priority $350 million amortizing term loan, which we refer to
as the Third Credit Facility, and a second priority $100,000
non-amortizing term loan, which we refer to as the second
priority term loan. Pursuant to the issuance of the Senior

Notes described below, the Third Credit Facility was reduced to
$275 million and the second priority term loan was eliminated.
The Third Credit Facility was to mature on March 10, 2008
and bore interest at LIBOR plus 1.625%.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In August and October 2001, we entered into interest rate
swap agreements with foreign banks to manage interest costs
and the risk associated with changing interest rates. At their
inception, these swaps had notional principal amounts equal
to 50% of our outstanding term loans under its First and
Second Credit Facilities. The notional principal amounts amor-
tize at the same rate as the term loans. The interest rate swap
agreement entered into during August 2001 hedged the First
Credit Facility, described above, to a fixed rate of 6.25%. This
swap agreement terminates on June 15, 2006. The interest rate
swap agreement entered into during October 2001 hedged the
Second Credit Facility, described above, to a fixed rate of
5.485%. This swap agreement terminates on June 27, 20006.
The differential to be paid or received for these swap agree-
ments is recognized as an adjustment to interest expense as
incurred. As of December 31, 2004, the outstanding notional
principal amounts on the swap agreements entered into during
August 2001 and October 2001 are $27.0 million and $185 mil-
lion, respectively. We have determined that these interest rate
swap agreements, which effectively hedged our First and
Second Credit Facilities continue to effectively hedge our 2004
Credit Facility.

Senior Notes

On March 20, 2003, we issued 3250 million of 10% Senior Notes
which are due March 15, 2013. Interest is paid on the Senior
Notes each March 15 and September 15. The Senior Notes are
general unsecured, senior obligations. The proceeds of the
Senior Notes, prior to payment of fees and expenses, were
$246.2 million. The Senior Notes contain incurrence covenants
which, among other things, restrict our future ability to incur
future indebtedness and liens, to apply the proceeds of asset
sales freely, to merge or undergo other changes of control and to
pay dividends. As of December 31, 2004, the discount on the
Senior Notes is $3.4 million. This discount is being amortized
as interest expense over the term of the senior notes using the
effective interest method. The Senior Notes are guaranteed by
all of our present subsidiaries and future “restricted” subsidiaries
(all of which are 100% owned by us). These guarantees are
full and unconditional and joint and several with us, General
Maritime Corporation, the parent company. We, as the parent
company, have no independent assets or operations.
Additionally, certain defaults on other debt instruments, such
as failure to pay interest or principal when due, are deemed to
be a default under the Senior Notes agreement.




In addition, the provisions of the Senior Notes require
that the proceeds from vessel sales, net of required debt
pavments made on senior indebtedness, be used to acquire
additional assets within one year from the dates of sale. If
such assets are not acquired, any excess proceeds, after reduc-
tion of the indebtedness under the 2004 Credit Facility, are to
be used to repurchase Senior Notes. As of December 31, 2004,
such excess net proceeds pertaining to the four vessels sold
during August and October 2004 aggregate $35.9 million,
which, if not used to acquire additional assets through August
2003, will be used to repurchase Senior Notes.

In accordance with the terms of our Senior Notes, we
cannot make cumulative “restricted payments” in excess of
the sum of (1) 50% of net income earned subsequent to
December 31, 2002, (2) cash proceeds from common stock
issued subsequent to December 31, 2002 and (3) $25 million.
“Restricted payments” principally include dividends, purchases
of our own common stock, and repayments of debt subordinate
to the senijor notes prior to their maturity.

The terms and conditions of the 2004 Credit Facility
require compliance with certain restrictive covenants, which
we feel are consistent with loan facilities incurred by other
shipping companies. Under the 2004 Credit Facility, we are
required to maintain certain ratios such as: vessel market
values to total outstanding loans and undrawn revolving credit
facilities, EBITDA to net interest expense and to maintain
minimum levels of working capital. In addition, the 2004
Credit Facility restricts the payment of dividends and repurchase
of common shares to an aggregate of $1.0 million per year.

As of December 31, 2004, we are in compliance with
all of the financial covenants under our 2004 Credit Facility
and our Senior Notes.

The total outstanding amounts as of December 31,
2004 associated with our 2004 Credit Facility and Senior Notes
as well as their maturity dates are as follows:

Total Outstanding Debt and Maturity Date
(dollars in thousands)

Outstanding Debt  Maturity Date

Total long-term debt
2004 Credit Facility
Senior Notes

$240,000
250,000

June 2009
March 2013

Cash and Working Capital

Cash increased to $46.9 million as of December 31, 2004 com-
pared to $389 million as of December 31, 2003, Working capital
is current assets minus current liabilities, including the current
portion of long-term debt. Working capital was $68.0 million
as of December 31, 2004, compared to $12.7 million as of
December 31, 2003. The current portion of long-term debt

included in our current liabilities was $40.0 million as of
December 31, 2004 and $59.6 million as of December 31, 2003.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increased 104% to
$363.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared
to $178.1 million for the prior year. This increase is primarily
attributable to net income of $315.1 million, depreciation and
amortization of $100.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to net income of $84.5 million, depreciation
and amortization of $84.9 million and a non-cash impairment
charge of $18.8 million for the prior year.

Net cash provided by operating activities increased
308% to $178.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003,
compared to $43.6 million for the prior year. This increase is
primarily attributable to net income of $84.5 million and
depreciation and amortization of $84.9 million and a non-cash
impairment charge of $18.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to net loss of $9.7 million,
depreciation and amortization of $60.4 million and a non-cash
impairment charge of $13.4 million for the prior year.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $168.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $502.9 million for
the prior year. During the vear ended December 31, 2004, we
paid $180.6 million to the seller for five tankers, and paid
$76.0 million for four Suezmax newbuilding contracts (of
which $67.2 million was paid to the seller of those contracts
and $8.8 million of installment payments were made to the
shipyards). During the year ended December 31, 2004, we
received $94.6 million of proceeds from the sale of one
Aframax tanker and four Suezmax tankers. During the year
ended December 31, 2003, we expended $528.5 million for
the purchase of 19 tankers and we received $27.3 million of
proceeds from the sale of four Aframax tankers.

Net cash used by investing activities was $502.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to net cash
provided by investing activities of $2.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. During the year ended December 31,
2003, we expended $528.5 million for the purchase of 19 tank-
ers and received $27.3 million from the sale of four Aframax
tankers. During the year ended December 31, 2002, we
received $2.3 million from the sale of one Aframax tanker.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used by financing activities was $186.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to net cash pro-
vided by financing activities of $361.0 million for the prior year
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period. The change in cash provided by financing activities
relates to the following:

¢ Net proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt during the
year ended December 31, 2004, net of issuance costs of
$7.2 million, were $507.8 million relating the initial borrowings
under our 2004 Credit Facility. Net proceeds from issuance of
long-term debt during the year ended December 31, 2003 net
of issuance costs of $14.6 was $506.6 million, which was com-
prised of $246.2 million of proceeds from our Senior Notes
offering and $275.0 million from our Third Credit Facility.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we retired our
First, Second and Third Credit Facilities, and repaid the
$448.3 million outstanding on those credit facilities at
the time of their retirement.

Principal repayments of long-term debt were $59.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004 associated with per-
manent principal repayments under our First, Second, Third
and 2004 Credit Facilities. Principal repayments of long-term
debt were $91.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 associated with permanent principal repayments under
our First, Second and Third Credit Facilities.

* During the year ended December 31, 2004, we repaid
$177.0 million of revolving debt associated with our First,
Second and 2004 Credit Facilities; during the year ended
December 31, 2003, we repaid $54.1 million of revolving
debt associated with our First and Second Credit Facilities.

®

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we sold three
Suezmax vessels which would have required a $13.1 million
repayment of the term loan portion of our 2004 Credit Facility.
Pursuant to an amendment to the 2004 Credit Facility, we
have until August 2005 to provide substitute collateral to the
2004 Credit Facility. This $13.1 million was placed in an
escrow account with the lender pending our providing
substitute collateral.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $361.0 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to net
cash used by financing activities of $60.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. The change in cash provided by
financing activities relates to the following:

* Net proceeds from borrowing under long-term debt during
the year ended December 31, 2003 aggrégated $521.2 million
consisting of $246.2 million of proceeds from the issuance
of Senior Notes and $275.0 million of borrowings under our
Third Credit Facility.

« Principal repayments of long-term debt during the year
ended December 31, 2003 aggregated $145.7 million, which
consisted of $91.6 million of principal repayments under

our First, Second and Third Credit Facilities and $54.1 million
of net payments made under our revolving credit facilities.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, principal repay-
ments of long-term debt aggregated $59.6 million, which
consisted of $74.6 million of scheduled principal repayments
under our First and Second Credit Facilities and $15.0 million
of net borrowings made under our revolving credit facilities.

» During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, pay-
ments for deferred financing costs aggregated $14.6 million
and $0.1 million, respectively.

Capital Expenditures for Drydockings and Vessel Acquisitions
Drydocking

In addition to tanker acquisition, other major capital expendi-
tures include funding our maintenance program of regularly
scheduled in-water survey or drydocking necessary to pre-
serve the quality of our tankers as well as to comply with
international shipping standards and environmental laws and
regulations. Management anticipates that tankers which are
younger than 15 years are required to undergo in-water surveys
2.5 years after a drydock and that tankers are to be drydocked
every five years, while tankers 15 years or older are to be
drydocked every 2.5 years in which case the additional dry-
docks take the place of these in-water surveys. During 2005,
we anticipate that we will capitalize costs associated with
drydocks or significant in-water surveys on approximately 18
tankers and that the expenditures to perform these drydocks
will aggregate approximately $30 million. The ability to meet
this maintenance schedule will depend on our ability to
generate sufficient cash flows from operations, utilize our
revolving credit facilities or to secure additional financing.

Vessel Acquisitions

In July 2004, we acquired four Suezmax newbuilding contracts.
The purchase price of these contracts aggregate $67.2 million
which was paid to the seller of those contracts. Also in July
2004, $8.8 million was paid to the shipyard as an installment
on the construction of the vessels associated with these con-
tracts. As of December 31, 2004, we are required to pay an
additional aggregate amount of $152.8 million through the
completion of construction of these four Suezmax tankers
delivery of which is expected to occur between March 2006 and
January 2008. The installments that comprise this $152.8 mil-
lion are payable as follows: $6.5 million in 2005, $71.3 million
in 2006, $42 .4 million in 2007, and $32.6 million in 2008.

Other Commitments

In February 2004, the Company entered into an operating
lease for an aircraft. The lease has a term of five years and
requires monthly payments by the Company of $125,000.



In December 2004, the Company entered into a 15-year lease for office space in New York, New York. The monthly
rental is as follows: Free rent from December 1, 2004 to September 30, 2005, $109,724 per month from October 1, 2005 to
September 30, 2010, $118,868 per month from October 1, 2010 to September 30, 2015, and $128,011 per month from October 1, 2015
to September 30, 2020. The monthly straight-line rental expense from December 1, 2004 to September 30, 2020 is $112,611.

The following is a tabular summary of our future contractual obligations for the categories set forth below (dollars

in millions):
Total 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter
Debt payments $490.0 $40.0  $ 40.0 $40.0 $40.0 $80.0 $250.0
New building installments 152.8 6.5 71.3 42,4 326 0.0 0.0
Aircraft lease 6.1 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 0.1 0.0
New York office lease 21.3 0.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 15.8
Total commitments $670.2 $48.3 $114.1 $85.2 $75.4 $81.4 $265.8

Other Derivative Financial Instruments

As part of our business strategy, we may enter into arrange-
ments commonly known as forward freight agreements, or
FFAs, to hedge and manage market risks relating to the
deployment of our existing fleet of vessels. The FFAs being
considered by the company are future contracts, or commitments
to perform in the future a shipping service between ship owners,
charters and traders. Generally, these FFAs would bind us and
each counterparty in the arrangement to buy or sell a speci-
fied tonnage freighting commitment “forward” at an agreed
time and price and for a particular route. Although FFAs can
be entered into for a variety of purposes, including for hedging,
as an option, for trading or for arbitrage, if we decided to
enter into FFAs, our objective would be to hedge and manage
market risks as part of our commercial management. It is not
currently our intention to enter into FFAs to generate a stream
of income independent of the revenues we derive from the
operation of our fleet of vessels. If we determine to enter into
FFAs, we may reduce our exposure to any declines in our results
from operations due to weak market conditions or downturns,
but may also limit our ability to benefit economically during
periods of strong demand in the market. We have not entered
into any FFA contracts as of December 31, 2004.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING PoOLICIES

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepied in the United States, or
GAAP. The preparation of those financial statements requires
us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of our financial statements. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Critical accounting policies are those that reflect
significant judgments or uncertainties, and potentially result
in materially different results under different assumptions and
conditions. We have described below what we believe are our
most critical accounting policies. Except for a change in the
estimated useful lives of our single-hull tankers effective
October 1, 2003 and the increase in residual scrap values of
our tankers effective January 1, 2004, we believe that there
has been no change in or additions to our critical accounting
policies since December 2001.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is generally recorded when
services are rendered, the Company has a signed charter
agreement or other evidence of an arrangement, pricing is
fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured.
Our revenues are earned under time charters or voyage con-
tracts. Revenue from time charters is earned and recognized
on a daily basis. Certain time charters contain provisions
which provide for adjustments to time charter rates based on
agreed-upon market rates. Revenue for voyage contracts is
recognized based upon the percentage of voyage completion.
The percentage of voyage completion is based on the number
of voyage days worked at the balance sheet date divided by
the total number of days expected on the voyage.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We do not provide any
reserve for doubtful accounts associated with our voyage
revenues because we believe that our customers are of high
creditworthiness and there are no serious issues concerning
collectibility. We have had an excellent collection record
during the past four years ended December 31, 2004, To the
extent that some voyage revenues become uncollectible,
the amounts of these revenues would be expensed at that
time. We provide a reserve for our demurrage revenues based
upon our historical record of collecting these amounts. As of
December 31, 2004, we provided a reserve of approximately
14% for these claims, which we believe is adequate in light of
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our collection history. We periodically review the adequacy of
this reserve so that it properly reflects our collection history.
To the extent that our collection experience warrants a greater
reserve we will incur an expense as to increase this amount
in that period.

Depreciation and Amortization. We record the value of our
tankers at their cost (which includes acquisition costs directly
attributable to the tanker and expenditures made to prepare
the tanker for its initial voyage) less accumulated depreciation.
We depreciate our non-single-hull tankers on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, estimated to be 25
years from date of initial delivery from the shipyard. The use-
ful lives of our single-hull tankers range from 19 to 21 years
from the date of delivery, as we consider 2010 to coincide
with the end of their useful lives. We believe that a 25-year
depreciable life for double-hull and double-sided tankers is
consistent with that of other ship owners. Depreciation is
based on cost less the estimated residual scrap value. Until
December 31, 2003, we estimated residual scrap value as the
lightweight tonnage of each tanker multiplied by $125 scrap
value per ton. Effective January 1, 2004, we changed our esti-
mate of residual scrap value per lightweight ton to be $175,
which we believe better approximates the historical average
price of scrap steel. An increase in the useful life of the tanker
would have the effect of decreasing the annual depreciation
charge and extending it into later periods. An increase in
the residual scrap value (as was done in 2004) would
decrease the amount of the annual depreciation charge. A
decrease in the useful life of the tanker would have the effect
of increasing the annual depreciation charge. A decrease in
the residual scrap value would increase the amount of the
annual depreciation charge.

Replacements, Renewals and Betterments. We capitalize and
depreciate the costs of significant replacements, renewals and
betterments to our tankers over the shorter of the tanker’s
remaining useful life or the life of the renewal or betterment.
The amount capitalized is based on our judgment as to expen-
ditures that extend a tanker’s useful life or increase the opera-
tional efficiency of a tanker. We believe that these criteria are
consistent with GAAP and that our policy of capitalization
reflects the economics and market values of our tankers. Costs
that are not depreciated are written off as a component of
direct vessel operating expense during the period incurred.
Expenditures for routine maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. If the amount of the expenditures we
capitalize for replacements, renewals and betterments to our
tankers were reduced, we would recognize the amount of the
difference as an expense.

Deferred Drydock Costs. Our tankers are required to be dry-
docked approximately every 30 to 60 months for major repairs
and maintenance that cannot be performed while the tankers are
operating. We capitalize the costs associated with the drydocks
as they occur and amortize these costs on a straight-line basis
over the period between drydocks. Costs capitalized as part
of the drydock include actual costs incurred at the drydock
yard; cost of fuel consumed between the tanker’s last discharge
port prior to the drydock and the time the tanker leaves the
drydock yard; cost of hiring riding crews to effect repairs on
a ship and parts used in making such repairs that are reason-
ably made in anticipation of reducing the duration or cost of
the drydock; cost of travel, lodging and subsistence of our
personnel sent to the drydock site to supervise; and the cost
of hiring a third party to oversee a drydock. We believe
that these criteria are consistent with GAAP guidelines and
industry practice, and that our policy of capitalization reflects
the economics and market values of the tankers.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We evaluate the carrying
amounts and periods over which long-lived assets are depre-
ciated to determine if events have occurred which would
require modification to their carrying values or useful lives. In
evaluating useful lives and carrying values of long-lived assets,
we review certain indicators of potential impairment, such as
undiscounted projected operating cash flows, tanker sales and
purchases, business plans and overall market conditions. We
determine undiscounted projected net operating cash flows
for each tanker and compare it to the tanker carrying value.
In the event that impairment occurred, we would determine
the fair value of the related asset and we record a charge to
operations calculated by comparing the asset’s carrying value
to the estimated fair value. We estimate fair value primarily
through the use of third party valuations performed on an
individual tanker basis.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On January 17, 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(*FASB") issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 467). Such Interpretation
addresses the consolidation of variable interest entities
(“VIEs”), including special purpose entities (“*SPEs”), that are
not controlled through voting interests or in which the equity
investors do not bear the residual economic risks and rewards.
The provisions of FIN 46 were effective immediately for transac-
tions entered into by the Company subsequent to January 31,
2003 and became effective for all other transactions as of July 1,
2003. However, in October 2003, the FASB permitted companies
to defer the July 1, 2003 effective date to December 31, 2003,




in whole or in part. On December 24, 2003, the FASB issued
a complete replacement of FIN 46 (“FIN 46R"), which clarified
certain complexities of FIN 46 and generally requires adop-
tion no later than December 31, 2003 for entities that were
considered SPEs under previous guidance, and no later than
March 31, 2004 for all other entities. The Company adopted
FIN 46R in its entirety as of December 31, 2003 even though
adoption for non-SPEs was not required until March 31, 2004,
The adoption of FIN 46R did not have a material impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R
that will require compensation costs related 1o share-based
payment transactions to be recognized in the financial state-
ments. With limited exceptions, the amount of compensation
cost will be measured based on the grant-date fair value of the
equity or liability instruments issued. In addition, lability
awards will be remeasured each reporting period. Compensation
cost will be recognized over the period that an employee
provides service in exchange for the award SFAS 123R replaces

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
and supersedes APB 25. This Statement will be effective as of
the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period
that begins after June 15, 2005.

Entities that used the fair-value-based method for
either recognirion or disclosure under SFAS No. 123 will apply
this revised Statement using a modified version of prospective
application. Under this transition method, for the portion of
outstanding awards for which the requisite service has not yet
been rendered, compensation cost is recognized on or after
required effective date based on the grant-date fair value
of those awards calculated under SFAS No. 123 for either
recognition or pro forma disclosures. For periods before the
required effective date, those entities may elect 1o apply a
modified version of the retrospective application under which
financial statements for periods are adjusted on a basis consis-
tent with the pro forma disclosures required for those periods
by SFAS No. 123. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 123R.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE OF MARKET RIsK

INTEREST RATE RISk

We are exposed to various market risks, including changes in
interest rates. The exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily
to our debt. At December 31, 2004, we had $240.0 million of
floating rate debt with a margin over LIBOR of 1.0% com-
pared to December 31, 2003 when we had $409.3 million of
floating rate debt with margins over LIBOR ranging from 1.5%
10 1.625%. We use interest rate swaps to manage the impact of
interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows. The differ-
ential to be paid or received under these swap agreements is
accrued as interest rates change and is recognized as an
adjustment to interest expense. As of December 31, 2004 and
2003, we were party to interest rate swap agreements having
aggregate notional amounts of $45.5 million and $71.5 million,
respectively, which effectively fixed LIBOR on a like amount
of principal at rates ranging from 3.985% to 475%. If we ter-
minate these swap agreements prior to their maturity, we may
be required to pay or receive an amount upon termination
based on the prevailing interest rate, time to maturity and
outstanding notional principal amount at the time of termina-
tion. As of December 31, 2004 the fair value of these swaps

was a net liability to us of $0.6 million. A one percent increase
in LIBOR would increase interest expense on the portion of
our $194.5 million outstanding floating rate indebtedness that
is not hedged by approximately $19 million per year from
December 31, 2004,

ForeioN ExcHANGE RATE Risk

The international tanker industry’s functional currency is the
U.S. Dollar. Virtually all of the Company’s revenues and most
of its operating costs are in U.S. Dollars. The Company incurs
certain operating expenses, drydocking, and overhead costs
in foreign currencies, the most significant of which is the Euro,
as well as British Pounds, Japanese Yen, Singapore Dollars,
Australian Dollars and Norwegian Kroners. During the year
ended December 31, 2004, at least 14% of the Company’s
direct vessel operating expenses and general and administra-
tive expenses were denominated in these currencies. The
potential additional expense from a 10% adverse change in
guoted foreign currency exchange rates, as it relates to all of
these currencies, would be approximately §1.8 miliion for the
year ended December 31, 2004.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2004 and 2003

December 31,

(dollars in thousands except per share dala) 2004 2003
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 46,921 $ 38905
Due from charterers, net 73,883 36,209
Vessel held for sale — 10,388
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 31,341 16,971
Total current assets 152,145 102,473
Noncurrent Assets:
Vessels, net of accumulated depreciation of $280,215 and $217,228, respectively 1,139,594 1,114,978
Vessel construction in progress 77,909 —
Other fixed assets, net 3,849 2,069
Deferred drydack costs, net 23,101 22,620
Deferred financing costs, net 11,860 15,685
Other assets 13,050 —
Goodwill 5,753 5,753
Total noncurrent assets 1,275,116 1,161,105
Total Assets $1,427,261 $1,263,578
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 36,799 $ 22418
Accrued interest 7,321 7,800
Current portion of long-term debt 40,000 59,553
Total current liabilities 84,120 89,771
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Deferred voyage revenue 5,558 6,330
Long-term debt 446,597 596,117
Derivative liability for cash flow hedge 560 2,480
Total noncurrent liabilities 452,715 604,927
Total Liabilities 536,835 (694,698
Commitments and Contingencies
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share; authorized 75,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding
37,895,870 and 37,614,145 shares at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively 379 376
Paid-in capital 424,021 421,189
Restricted stock (3,646) (5,313)
Retained earnings 470,217 155,108
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (545) (2,480)
Total shareholders’ equity 890,426 568,880
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $1,427,261 $1,263,578

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

(dollars in thousands except per share data) 2004 2003 2002
Voyage Revenues:

Voyage revenues §701,291 $454,456 $226,357
Operating Expenses:

Voyage expenses 117,955 117,810 80,790

Direct vessel expenses 96,818 91,981 55,241

General and administrative 31,420 22,866 12,026

Depreciation and amortization 100,806 84,925 60,431

Gain on sale of vessels 6,570) (1,490) (266)

Impairment charge — 18,803 13,366

Total operating expenses 340,429 334,895 221,588

Operating Income 360,862 119,561 4,769
Other Expense:

Interest income 979 462 236

Interest expense (38,831) (35,503 (14,747)

Other expense 7,901) — —

Net other expense (45,753) (35,043) (14,511

Net income (loss) $315,109 $ 84,518 $ 9,742)
Earnings (loss) per common share:

Basic $ 851 $ 229 $ (0.26)

Diluted 5 833 $ 226 $ (0.26)
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic 37,049,266 36,967,174 36,980,600
Weighted average shares outstanding—diluted 37,813,929 37,355,764 36,980,600

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS Eourry

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Accumulated
: Other
(dollars in thousands, Common  Paid-In  Restricted  Retained  Comprehensive ~ Comprehensive
except per share data) Stock Capital Stock Earnings Income (Loss)  Income (Loss) Total
Balance as of January 1, 2002 $370  $416,095 $ 80,332 $(1,107) $ 495,690
Net Loss (9,742) $ (9,742) 9,742)
Unrealized derivative losses
on cash flow hedge (3,263) (3,263) (3,263)
$ (13,005)
Issuance of 625,000 shares of
restricted stock 6 3,788  $(3,794 —
Restricted stock amortization 52 52
Purchase price adjustment (634) (634)
Common stock issuance costs (467) (467)
Balance as of December 31, 2002 376 418,782 (3,742) 70,590 (4,370) 481,636
Net Income 84,518 $ 84,518 84,518
Unrealized derivative gains on
cash flow hedge 1,890 1,890 1,890
$ 86,408
Issuance of 155,000 shares of
restricted stock 2,260 (2,260) —
Restricted stock amortization 689 689
Exercise of stock options — 147 147
Balance as of December 31, 2003 376 421,189 (5,313) 155,108 (2,480 568,880
Net Income 315,109 $ 315,109 315,109
Unrealized derivative gains on
cash flow hedge 1,935 1,935 1,935
$317,044
Restricted stock amortization 1,667 1,667
Exercise of stock options 3 2,832 2,835
Balance as of December 31, 2004 $379 $424,021 $(3,646) $470,217 $ (545 $890,426

See notes to consolidaled financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

(doliars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 315,109 $ 84518 $ 9,742
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Gain on sale of vessels (6,570) (1,490) (266)
Impairment charge — 18,803 13,366
Depreciation and amortization 100,806 84,925 60,431
Other non-cash expense 7,901 — —
Amortization of discount on senior notes 254 185 —
Restricted stock compensation expense 1,667 689 52
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in due from charterers (37,679 (10,850) (5,645)
Increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets (13,502) (4,819 (3,433)
Increase in accounts pavable and accrued expenses 13,548 7,261 4,660
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest (479 7,441 6D
(Decrease) increase in deferred vovage revenue 772 5,586 (2,179
Deferred drydock costs incurred (17,050) (14,137) (13,546)
Net cash provided by operating activities 363,238 178,112 43,637
Cash Flows (Used) Provided by Investing Activities:
Purchase of vessels (182,457) (528,519) —
Payments for vessel construction in progress (77,909 — —
Purchase of other fixed assets (2,544) Q1,677 Q17)
Proceeds from sale of vessels 94,570 27,277 2,251
Acquisition of business net of cash received Q37 — —
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (168,477) (502,919 2,034
Cash Flows (Used) Provided by Financing Activities:
Proceeds from senior notes offering — 246,158 —
Long-term debt borrowings 515,000 275,000 —
Payments to retire long-term debt (448,305) — —
Principal payments on long-term debt (59.022) (91,584) (74,589)
Net (payments) borrowings on revolving credit facilities (177,000) (54,100) 15,000
Deferred financing costs paid (7,20%) (14,590 (120)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2,835 147 —
Cash placed in escrow with lender (13,050) — —
Common stock issuance costs — — (467)
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (186,745 361,031 (60,176)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 8,016 36,224 (14,503
Cash, beginning of the year 38,905 2,681 17,186
Cash, end of year $ 46,921 $ 38,905 $ 2,681
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest (net of amount capitalized) $ 39,310 $ 28,064 $ 14,808

See notes 10 consolidated financial staiements.
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Not1es 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(dollars in thousards, except per share data)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT .ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business. General Maritime Corporation (the
“Company”) through its subsidiaries provides international
transportation services of seaborne crude oil. The Company’s
fleet is comprised of both Aframax and Suezmax tankers. The
Company operates its business in one business segment,
which is the transportation of international seaborne crude oil.

The Company’s vessels are primarily available for
charter on a spot voyage or time charter basis. Under a spot
voyage charter, which generally lasts between two to ten
weeks, the owner of a vessel agrees to provide the vessel for
the transport of specific goods between specific ports in return
for the payment of an agreed-upon freight per ton of cargo or,
alternatively, for a specified total amount. All operatingand
specified voyage costs are paid by the owner of.the vessel.

A time charter involves placing a vessel at the charter-
er’s disposal for a set period of time during which the
charterer may use the vessel in return for the payment by the
charterer of a specified daily or monthly hire rate. In time
charters, operating costs such as for crews, maintenance and
insurance are typically paid by the owner of the vessel and
specified voyage costs such as fuel and port charges are paid
by the charterer.

Basis of Presentation. The financial statements of the
Company have been prepared on the accrual basis of account-
ing. A summary of the significant accounting policies followed
in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements,
which conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, is presented below.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the
Company'’s prior year financial statements to conform to 2004
presentation.

Business Geograpbics. Non-U.S. operations accounted for
100% of revenues and net income. Vessels regularly move
between countries in international waters, over hundreds of
trade routes. It is therefore impractical to assign revenues or
earnings from the transportation of international seaborne
crude oil products by geographical area.

Segment Reporting. The Company has determined that it
operates in one reportable segment, the transportation of
crude oil with its fleet of midsize tankers.

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of General Maritime
Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercom-
pany accounts and transactions have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Revenue and Expense Recognition. Revenue and expense
recognition policies for voyage and time charter agreements
are as follows:

Voyage Charters. Voyage revenues and voyage expenses
are recognized on a pro rata basis based on the relative
transit time in each period. Estimated losses on voyages
are provided for in full at the time such losses become
evident. A voyage is deemed to commence upon the
completion of discharge of the vessel's previous cargo and
is deemed to end upon the completion of discharge of the
current cargo. Voyage expenses primarily include only
those specific costs which are borne by the Company in
connection with voyage charters which would otherwise
have been borne by the charterer under time charter
agreements.

These expenses principally consist of fuel and port
charges. Demurrage income represents payments by the
charterer to the vessel owner when loading and discharg-
ing time exceed the stipulated time in the voyage charter.
Demurrage income is measured in accordance with the
provisions of the respective charter agreements and the
circumstances under which demurrage claims arise and
is recognized on a pro rata basis over the length of the
voyage to which it pertains. At December 31, 2004 and
2003, the Company has a reserve of approximately $2,320
and $1,143, respectively, against its due from charterers
balance associated with demurrage revenues.

Time Charters. Revenue from time charters are recognized
on a straight-line basis as the average revenue over the
term of the respective time charter agreement. Direct
vessel expenses are recognized when incurred. As of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Cc')mpimy has a reserve
of $2,386 and $0, respectively, against its due from charterers
balance associated with estimated performance claims
against the Company’s time charters.

Vessels, Net. Vessels, net is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Included in vessel costs are acquisition costs
directly attributable to the vessel and expenditures made to
prepare the vessel for its initial voyage. Vessels are depreci-
ated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
determined to be 25 years from date of initial delivery from
the shipyard for non-single-hull vessels. During the fourth
quarter of 2003, management determined that single-hull
vessels can only trade until 2010, when regulatory restrictions
require their phase-out unless certain conditions are met,
resulting in a reduction of the estimated useful lives of single-
hull vessels to 19 to 21 years from the date of initial delivery




from the shipyard. This change in estimate resulted in an
increase in annual depreciation expense of approximately
$8,500, or $0.23 per share, through 2009 on the Company’s
nine single-hull vessels owned as of December 31, 2003.
During 2004, the Company sold four of these single-hull
vessels. The change in estimate resulted in an increase in
annual depreciation expense of approximately $4,700, or $0.13
per share, through 2009 on the Company’s five remaining
single-hull vessels owned as of December 31, 2004.

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company increased
residual scrap value of its tankers from one hundred twenty-
five dollars (§0.125) per light weight ton to one hundred
and seventy-five dollars ($0.175) per light weight ton, which
the Company believes better approximates the historical
average price of scrap steel. The impact of this change is to
reduce depreciation expense by approximately $3,600, or
$0.10 per share, per year subsequent to December 31, 2003.

Depreciation is based on cost less the estimated
residual scrap value. The costs of significant replacements,
renewals and betterments are capitalized and depreciated over
the shorter of the vessel's remaining useful life or the life of
the renewal or betterment. Undepreciated cost of any asset
component being replaced is written off as a component of
direct vessel operating expense. Expenditures for routine
maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Construction in Progress. Construction in progress repre-
sents the cost of acquiring contracts to build vessels,
installments paid to shipyards, certain other payments made
to third parties and interest costs incurred during the con-
struction of vessels (until the vessel is substantially complete
and ready for its intended use). During the year ended
December 31, 2004, the Company capitalized $1,270 of
interest expense.

Other Fixed Assets, Net. Other fixed assets, net is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Description Useful Lives
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 10 years
Vessel equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 4 years

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The Company follows
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” which requires impairment losses to be recorded on
long-lived assets used in operations when indicators of
impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows

estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the
asset’s carrying amount. In the evaluation of the fair value and
future benefits of long-lived assets, the Company performs an
analysis of the anticipated undiscounted future net cash flows
of the related long-lived assets. If the carrying value of the
related asset exceeds the undiscounted cash flows, the carry-
ing value is reduced to its fair value. Various factors including
future charter rates and vessel operating costs are included in
this analysis.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, no
impairment charges were recorded, based on the analysis
described above. During the year ended December 31, 2003,
an impairment charge of $18,803 was recorded on five of the
Company’s single-hull vessels (see Note 4). During the year
ended December 31, 2002, an impairment charge of $13,366
was recorded on three of the Company’s single-hull vessels
which were disposed of during the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002 (see Note 4).

Deferred Drydock Costs, Net. Approximately every 30 to 60
months the Company’s vessels are required to be drydocked for
major repairs and maintenance, which cannot be performed
while the vessels are operating. The Company capitalizes costs
associated with the drydocks as they occur and amortizes
these costs on a straight-line basis over the period between
drydocks. Amortization of drydock costs is included in
depreciation and amortization in the statement of operations.
For the vears ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
amortization was $11,783, $7,072 and $4,340, respectively.
Accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
was $15,878 and $13,348, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs, Net. Deferred financing costs
include fees, commissions and legal expenses associated with
securing loan facilities. These costs are amortized over the life
of the related debt, which is included in depreciation and
amortization. Amortization was $3,142, $3,468 and $1,492 for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively. Accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2004 and
2003 was $2,070 and $4,934, respectively.

Other Assets. Other assets represents cash placed in escrow,
in lieu of being used to repay a portion of the Company’s
outstanding term loan as required by an amendment to the
2004 Credit Facility, relating to the sale during August and
October 2004 of four single-hull Suezmax vessels. See Note 8
for further discussion.

Goodwill. As of January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the
provisions for SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” This statement requires that goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives no longer be amortized, but instead
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NoTEs TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(dollars in thousands, except per share dala)

be tested for impairment at least annually and written down
with a charge to operations when the carrying amount exceeds
the estimated fair value. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142,
the Company amortized goodwill. The amount of such unam-
ortized goodwill was §5,753 as of January 1, 2002 related to
the Company’s acquisition in June 2001 of a technical man-
agement company. In accordance with SFAS No. 142 the
Company discontinued the amortization of goodwill effective
January 1, 2002. The Company determined that there was no
impairment of goodwill as of the transition date and during
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Income Taxes. The Company is incorporated in the Republic
of the Marshall Islands. Pursuant to the income tax laws of the
Marshall Islands, the Company is not subject to Marshall
Islands income tax. Additionally, pursuant to the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code, the Company is exempt from U.S. income tax on
its income attributable to the operation of vessels in interna-
tional commerce. Pursuant to various tax treaties, the Company’s
shipping operations are not subject to foreign income taxes.
Therefore, no provision for income taxes is required.

Deferred Voyage Revenue. Deferred voyage revenue primarily
relates to cash received from charterers prior to it being
earned. These amounts are recognized as income in the
appropriate future periods.

Comprebensive Income. The Company follows Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No, 130 “Reporting
Comprehensive Income,” which establishes standards for
reporting and displaving comprehensive income and its com-
ponents in financial statements. Comprehensive income is
comprised of net income less charges related to the adoption
and implementation of SFAS No. 133.

Stock-Based Compensation. The Company follows the
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB™)
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” to account
for its stock option plan. The Company provides pro forma
disclosure of net income and earnings per share as if the
accounting provision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” had been adopted. Options granted are
exercisable at prices equal to the fair market value of such
stock on the dates the options were granted. The fair values
of the options were determined on the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. These options were
valued based on the following assumptions: an estimated life
of five years for all options granted, volatility of 53%, 47%,
63% and 54% for options granted during 2004, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively, risk free interest rate of 3.83%, 3.5%, 4.0%
and 5.5% for options granted during 2004, 2003, 2002 and

2001, respectively, and no dividend yield for any options
granted. The fair value of the 860,000 options to purchase
common stock granted on June 12, 2001 is $8.50 per share.
The fair value of the 143,500 options to purchase common
stock granted on November 26, 2002 is $3.42 per share. The
fair value of the 50,000, 12,500 and 29,000 options to pur-
chase common stock granted on May 5, 2003, June 5, 2003
and November 12, 2003 is $395 per share, $4.52 per share,
and $6.61 per share, respectively. The fair value of the 20,000
options to purchase common stock granted on May 20, 2004
is $11.22 per share.

Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option
plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant
dates for awards under those plans consistent with the
methods recommended by SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net
income (loss) and net income (loss) per share for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, would have been
stated at the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2004 2003 2002
Net income (loss):
As reported $315,109 384,518  $(9,742)
Stock-based compensation
expense (benefit) using
the fair value method 458 201 (1,00%)
Pro forma $314,651  $84,317  $(8,737)
Earnings (loss) per common
share (as reported):
Basic $ 851 $ 229 $(0.20)
Diluted $ 833 § 226 $(0.26)
Earnings (loss) per common
share (pro forma):
Basic $ 849 $ 228 $(0.24)
Diluted $ 832 $ 226 $ (029

Accounting Estimates. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the report-
ing period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings/(loss) per share are com-
puted by dividing net income/(loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted income/(loss) per share reflects the potential dilution
that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue com-
mon stock were exercised.




Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The estimated fair
values of the Company’s financial instruments other than its
Senior Notes approximate their individual carrying amounts
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 due to their short-term
maturity or the variable-rate nature of the respective borrowings.
The estimated fair value of the Company’s Senior Notes are
based on quoted market prices.

Derivative Financial Instruments. To manage its exposure
to fluctuating interest rates, the Company uses interest rate
swap agreements. Interest rate differentials to be paid or
received under these agreements are accrued and recognized
as an adjustment of interest expense related to the designated
debt. The fair values of interest rate swap agreements and
changes in fair value are recognized in the financial statements
as noncurrent assets or liabilities.

Amounts receivable or payable arising at the settle-
ment of interest rate swaps are deferred and amortized as an
adjustment to interest expense over the period of interest rate
exposure provided the designated liability continues to exist.

Interest Rate Risk Management. The Company is exposed to
the impact of interest rate changes. The Company’s objective
is to manage the impact of interest rate changes on earnings
and cash flows of its borrowings. The Company uses interest
rate swaps t0 manage net exposure to interest rate changes
related to its borrowings and to lower its overall borrowing
costs. Significant interest rate risk management instruments
held by the Company during the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 included pay-fixed swaps. As of
December 31, 2004, the Company is party to pay-fixed interest
rate swap agreements that expire in 2006 which effectively
convert floating rate obligations to fixed rate instruments.
During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
the Company recognized a credit/(charge) to other compre-
hensive loss (OCD) of $1,935, $1,890 and $(3,263), respectively.
The aggregate liability in connection with a portion of the
Company’s cash flow hedges as of December 31, 2004 and
2003 was $560 and $2,480, respectively, and is presented as
Derivative liability for cash flow hedge on the balance sheet.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit
risk are trade receivables. With respect to accounts receivable,
the Company limits its credit risk by performing ongoing
credit evaluations and, when deemed necessary, requiring
letters of credit, guarantees or collateral. Management does
not believe significant risk exists in connection with the
Company’s concentrations of credit at December 31, 2004.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. On January 17, 2003,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘FASB") issued
FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” (“FIN 46"). Such Interpretation addresses the consoli-
dation of variable interest entities (“VIEs™), including special
purpose entities (“SPEs™), that are not controlled through
voting interests or in which the equity investors do not bear
the residual economic risks and rewards. The provisions of
FIN 46 were effective immediately for transactions entered
into by the Company subsequent to January 31, 2003 and
became effective for all other transactions as of July 1, 2003.
However, in October 2003, the FASB permitted companies to
defer the July 1, 2003 effective date to December 31, 2003, in
whole or in part. On December 24, 2003, the FASB issued a
complete replacement of FIN 46 (FIN 46R”), which clarified
certain complexities of FIN 46 and generally requires adop-
tion no later than December 31, 2003 for entities that were
considered SPEs under previcus guidance, and no later than
March 31, 2004 for all other entities. The Company adopted
FIN 40R in its entirety as of December 31, 2003 even though
adoption for non-SPEs was not required until March 31, 2004.
The adoption of FIN 46R did not have a material impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R
that will require compensation costs related to share-based
payment transactions to be recognized in the financial state-
ments. With limited exceptions, the amount of compensation
cost will be measured based on the grant-date fair value of
the equity or liability instruments issued. In addition, liability
awards will be remeasured each reporting period. Compensa-
tion cost will be recognized over the period that an employee
provides service in exchange for the award. SFAS 123R replaces
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
and supersedes APB 25. This Statement will be effective as of
the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period
that begins afier June 13, 2005.

Entities that used the fair-value-based method for
either recognition or disclosure under SFAS No. 123 will apply
this revised Statement using a modified version of prospective
application. Under this transition method, for the portion of
outstanding awards for which the requisite service has not yet
been rendered, éompensation cost is recognized on or after
required effective date based on the grant-date fair value of
those awards calculated under SFAS No. 123 for either
recognition or pro forma disclosures. For periods before the
required effective date, those entities may elect to apply a
modified version of the retrospective application under which
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financial statements for periods are adjusted on a basis
consistent with the pro forma disclosures required for those
periods by SFAS No. 123. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact of adopting SFAS No. 123R.

2. ACQUISITIONS

During the period from March 2003 to May 2003, the Company
acquired 19 tankers from an unaffiliated entity consisting of
14 Suezmax tankers and five Aframax tankers. The aggregate
purchase price of these vessels was $325,000, which was
financed through the use of cash and borrowings under the
Company’s existing revolving credit facilities together with the
incurrence of additional debt described in Note 8.

In March 2004, the Company agreed to acquire three
Aframax vessels, two Suezmax vessels, four newbuilding
Suezmax contracts and a technical management company
from an unaffiliated entity for cash. The three Aframax
vessels, two Suezmax vessels and the technical management
company were acquired between April and June 2004. The
four newbuilding Suezmax contracts were acquired in July
2004. The purchase price of these assets was approximately
$248,100, which were financed through cash on hand and
borrowings under the Company’s then existing revolving
credit facilities. This $248,100 purchase price was allocated as
follows: $180,599 for the five vessels, $67,242 for the four
newbuilding Suezmax contracts and $266 for the technical
management company the net assets of which are comprised
of $107 of cash, other current assets of $738, noncurrent assets
of $82 and current liabilities of $661. In addition, $8,777 was
paid to the shipyard as an installment on the construction
price of the four newbuilding contracts.

The remaining installments on the four newbuilding
Suezmax contracts to be paid by the Company aggregate
$152,853 and are payable as follows: $6,514 in 2005, $71,310 in
2006, $42,444 in 2007 and $32,585 in 2008.

3. EARNINGS (Loss) PErR COMMON SHARE

The computation of basic earnings (loss) per share is based
on the weighted average number of common shares outstand-
ing during the vear. The computation of diluted earnings
(loss) per share assumes the exercise of all dilutive stock
options (see Note 13) using the treasury stock method and the
granting of unvested restricted stock awards (see Note 16), for
which the assumed proceeds upon grant are deemed to be
the amount of compensation cost attributable to future services
and not yet recognized using the treasury stock method, to

the extent dilutive. For the year ended December 31, 2004, all
stock options were considered to be dilutive. For the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, 267,000 and 270,000
stock options, respectively, were excluded from the computation
of diluted earnings per common share as they were anti-dilutive.

The components of the denominator for the calcula-
tion of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share

is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Common shares
outstanding, basic:
Weighted average
common shares
outstanding, basic 37,049,266

36,967,174 36,980,600

Commeon shares
outstanding, diluted:
Weighted average
common shares
outstanding, basic
Stock options
Restricted stock awards

37,049,266
111,572
653,091

36,967,174 36,980,600
52,176 —_
336,414 —

Weighted average
common shares

outstanding, diluted 37,813,929 37355764 36,980,500

4. IMPAIRMENT CHARGE/GAIN ON SALE OF VESSELS

During September 2002, the Company decided to retire a
1979-built single-hull Aframax tanker through its sale for
scrap. This decision was based on management's assessment
of estimated charter rates for the vessel and the estimated
daily operating costs as well as the cost of this vessel’s next
drydocking which was scheduled for April 2003. An impair-
ment charge of $4,520 was recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2002, which was the amount by which the
vessel's carrying value exceeded the estimated net proceeds to
be received upon disposal. When the vessel was sold in
November 2002, a $266 gain was recognized for the amount
by which net proceeds received upon sale of the vessel
exceeded the vessel’s then carrying value.

During December 2002, the Company decided to sell
a 1980-built single-hull Aframax tanker and a 1981-built
single-hull Aframax tanker. This decision was based on
management’s assessment of the projected cost associated
with the vessels’ next drydockings which were scheduled to
occur during 2003 and the estimated operating revenues for
the vessels over their remaining operating lives. An impair-
ment charge of $8,846 was recorded during the year ended




December 31, 2002 that represents the difference between the
vessels’ book values and the estimated proceeds from their
anticipated sale. These vessels were written down to their
estimated net selling price of $2,000 per vessel, and were
reclassified on the December 31, 2002 balance sheet from
vessels to vessels held for sale.

During 2003, the vessels held for sale as of December 31,
2002 were sold, resulting in an aggregate gain on sale of
vessels of $2,664. Also during 2003, three double-bottom
Aframax vessels acquired in 2003 were sold, in order to reduce
the age profile of the Company's fleet, for an aggregate loss
on sale of vessels of $1,174. Of these three vessels, two were
delivered to their new owners in 2003 and one was delivered
to its new owner in February 2004.

In December 2003, the International Maritime
Organization adopted a proposed amendment to the
International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution from
Ships to accelerate the phase-out of certain single-hull tankers
from 2015 to 2010, unless the flag state extends the date to
2015. Management determined that the useful lives of its nine
single-hull tankers would end in 2010, which is four to six
years earlier than the 25-year useful lives the vessels had
previously been ascribed. Because of the reduction in the use-
ful lives of these single-hull tankers, an impairment evaluation
was performed in accordance with the guidelines of SFAS
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets” The completion of the Company’s evaluation
indicated that the carrying value of five of its nine single-hull
tankers exceeded the expected undiscounted future cash
flows attributable to these assets, resulting in an impairment.
The total impairment charge recognized during the fourth
quarter of 2003 was $18,803. In accordance with the Company’s
policy, the impairment loss was determined to be equal to the
amount by which the carrying value of these five tankers
exceeded their estimated fair value. Fair values were
determined using fair valuations performed by third parties.

In addition to the impairment charge taken on five
single-hull tankers, effective October 1, 2003, the estimated
useful lives of the nine single-hull tankers were reduced to
useful lives ranging from 19 to 21 years. This change in
estimate resulted in an increase in annual depreciation
expense of approximately $8,500 through 2009 on the
Company’s nine single-hull vessels owned as of December 31,
2003. During 2004, the Company sold four of these single-hull
vessels. This change in estimate resulted in an increase in

annual depreciation expense of approximately $4,700 through
2009 on the Company’s five remaining single-hull vessels
owned as of December 31, 2004.

During July 2004, the Company agreed to sell four of
its single-hull Suezmax vessels in order to reduce the number
of single-hull vessels in the Company’s fleet. These vessels
were sold during August and October 2004 for aggregate net
proceeds of approximately $84,182, for a gain on sale of
vessels of $6,570.

5. PrepaID Expenses AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the

following:
December 31,

2004 2003
Bunkers and lubricants inventory $16,734  $14,198
Insurance claims receivable 7,108 530
Other 7,499 2,243
Total $31,341 $16,971

Insurance claims receivable consist substantially of
payments made by the Company for repairs of vessels that the
Company expects to recover from insurance.

6. OTHER FIXED ASSETS

Other fixed assets consist of the following:
December 31,
2004 2003

Other fixed assets:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment $1,050 § 948
Vessel equipment 2,881 1,786

Computer equipment 978 705
Total cost 4,909 3,439
Less: accumulated depreciation 1,060 1,370
Total $3,849  $2,069

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,

2004 2003
Accounts payable $14,839  $13,357
Accrued operating 17,763 8,506
Accrued administrative 4,197 555
Total $36,799  $22,418
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8. Long-TerM DesT
Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31,

2004 2003

First Credit Faciliry )

Term Loan $ — § 86,866

Revolving Credit Facility — 13,000
Second Credit Facility

Term Loan — 53,000

Revolving Credit Facility — 9,000
Third Credit Facility — 247,461
2004 Credit Facility

Term Loan 205,000 —_

Revolving Credit Facility 35,000 —
Senior Notes, net of discount 246,597 246,343
Total 486,597 655,670
Less: current portion of long-term debt 40,000 59,553
Long-term debt $446,597  §596,117

2004 Credit Facility

On July 1, 2004, the Company closed on an $825,000 senior
secured bank financing facility (2004 Credit Facility”) consisting
of a term loan of $225,000 and a revolving loan of $600,000.
The term loan has a five year maturity at a rate of LIBOR plus
1.0% and amortizes on a quarterly basis with 19 payments of
$10,000 and one payment of $35,000. The revolving loan
component, which does not amortize, has a five year maturity
at a rate of LIBOR plus 1.0% on the used portion and a 0.5%
commitment fee on the unused portion.

Concurrent with the closing of the 2004 Credit Facility,
pursuant to which the Company borrowed $225,000 under the
term loan and $290,000 under the revolving credit facility, the
Company retired its existing First, Second and Third Credit
Facilities described below (the “Refinancing”™). At the time of
the Refinancing, the 2004 Credit Facility was secured by the
42 vessels which collateralized the First, Second and Third
Credit Facilities and the five vessels described in Note 2 which
were acquired during 2004. In addition, each of our subsidiar-
ies which has an ownership interest in any tanker vessel that
is secured by the 2004 Credit Facility has provided uncondi-
tional guaranties of all amounts owing under the 2004 Credit
Facility. Deferred financing costs incurred relating to the 2004
Credit Facility aggregated $6,905.

Upon consummating the Refinancing, unamortized
deferred financing costs associated with the First, Second and
Third Credit Facilities aggregating $7,886 was written off as a
non-cash charge in July 2004. This non-cash charge is classi-
fied as Other expense on the statement of operations.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had $205,000
outstanding on the term loan and $35,000 outstanding on the
revolving loan. The 2004 Credit Facility is secured by all of
the ships in the Company’s 43 vessel fleet, which includes five
vessels acquired in 2004 described in Note 2 with a carrying
value at December 31, 2004 of $1,139,594 and $13,050 cash
held in escrow.

As described in Note 4, in August and October 2004,
the Company sold four single-hull Suezmax vessels. Pursuant
to an amendment to the 2004 Credit Facitity, the Company is
permitted, until August 2005 to substitute as collateral future
vessel acquisitions with a fair value equivalent to the vessels
sold. Had this amendment not been agreed to, the Company
would, upon the sale of these four vessels, have had to repay
$13,050 associated with the $225,000 term loan and the
$600,000 revolving credit facility would have been perma-
nently reduced by $35,194. In accordance with the amendment
to the 2004 Credit Facility, the Company placed $13,050 in
escrow which will be returned to the Company if collateral is
substituted as described above. This amount of cash held in
escrow is classified as Other assets on the Company’s balance
sheet. If such collateral is not fully provided, on August 31,
2003, the remaining amount held in the escrow account will
be used to repay a portion of the term loan. With respect to
the revolving credit facility, $35,194 is currently not available
to be drawn until such substitute collateral is provided. To the
extent substitute collateral is not provided by August 31, 2003,
the revolving credit facility will be permanently reduced.

The terms and conditions of the 2004 Credit Facility
require compliance with certain restrictive covenants, which
the Company feels are consistent with loan facilities incurred
by other shipping companies. Under the credit facility, the
Company is required to maintain certain ratios such as: vessel
market values to total outstanding loans and undrawn revolving
credit facilities, EBITDA to net interest expense and to main-
tain minimum levels of working capital. In addition, the 2004
Credit Facility restricts the payment of dividends and repurchase
of common shares to an aggregate of $1,000 per year.

First, Second and Third Credit Facilities—Refinanced by the
2004 Credit Facility

The First Credit Facility was comprised of a $200,000 term
loan and a $100,000 revolving loan. The First Credit Facility
was to mature on June 15, 2006. The term loan was repayable
in quarterly installments. The principal of the revolving loan
was to be payable at maturity. The First Credit Facility bore
interest at LIBOR plus 15%. The Company was obligated to



pay a fee of 0.625% per annum on the unused portion of the
revolving loan on a quarterly basis. Due 1o the sale of three of
the Aframax tankers securing the First Credit Facility, the
revolving loan facility was reduced to $96,519. As of June 30,
2004, the Company had $69,493 outstanding on the term loan
and $50,000 outstanding on the revolving loan. All of these
outstanding balances were repaid during the Refinancing on
July 1, 2004. The Company’s obligations under the First Credit
Facility were secured by 17 vessels.

The Second Credit Facility consisted of a $115,000
term loan and a $50,000 revolving loan. The Second Credit
Facility was to mature on June 27, 2006. The term loan was
repayable in quarterly installments. The principal of the
revolving loan was to be payable at maturity. The Second
Credit Facility bore interest at LIBOR plus 1.5%. The Company
was obligated to pay a fee of 0.625% per annum on the unused
portion of the revolving loan on a quarterly basis. As of June 30,
2004, the Company had $45,000 outstanding on the term loan
and $50,000 outstanding on the revolving loan. All of these
outstanding balances were repaid during the Refinancing on
July 1, 2004. The Company’s obligations under the Second
Credit Facility agreements were secured by nine vessels.

On March 11, 2003 in connection with the 19 vessels
acquired by the Company as discussed in Note 2, the Company
entered into commitments for $450,000 in credit facilities.
These credit facilities were comprised of a first priority
$350,000 amortizing term loan (the “Third Credit Facility™)
and a second priority $100,000 non-amortizing term loan (the
“Second Priority Term Loan”). Pursuant to the issuance of the
Senior Notes described below, the Third Credit Facility was
reduced to $275,000 (such reduction from $350,000 is treated
as a prepayment of the first six installments due under this
facility) and the Second Priority Term Loan was eliminated.
The Third Credit Facility was to mature on March 10, 2008,
was to be repayable in 19 quarterly installments and bore
interest at LIBOR plus 1.625%. As of June 30, 2004, the
Company had outstanding $233,812 on the Third Credit
Facility. This outstanding balance was repaid during the
Refinancing on July 1, 2004. The Company’s obligations under
the Third Credit Facility were secured by 16 vessels.

Interest rates during the year ended December 31,
2004 ranged from 2.38% to 3.00% on the First, Second, Third
and 2004 Credit Facilities.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In August and October 2001, the Company entered into interest
rate swap agreements with foreign banks to manage interest
costs and the risk associated with changing interest rates. At
their inception, these swaps had notional principal amounts
equal 10 50% the Company’s outstanding term loans under its
First and Second Credit Facilities. The notional principal
amounts amortize at the same rate as the term loans. The
interest rate swap agreement entered into during August 2001
hedges the First Credit Facility, described above, to a fixed
rate of 6.25%. This swap agreement terminates on June 15,
2006. The interest rate swap agreement entered into during
October 2001 hedges the Second Credit Facility, described
above, to a fixed rate of 5.485%. This swap agreement termi-
nates on June 27, 2006. The differential to be paid or received
for these swap agreements is recognized as an adjustment
to interest expense as incurred. As of December 31, 2004,
the outstanding notional principal amount on the swap
agreements entered into during August 2001 and October
2001 are $27,000 and $18,500, respectively. The changes in
the notional principal amounts of the swaps during the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003
Notional principal amount, beginning of year ~ $ 71,500  $102,750
Amortization of swaps (26,000)  (31,250)

Notional principal amount, end of the year $ 45,500 $ 71,500

The Company has determined that these interest rate
swap agreements, which effectively hedged the Company’s
First and Second Credit Facilities continues to effectively
hedge, but not perfectly, the Company’s 2004 Credit Facility.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, a $15 loss was
recorded as other expense relating to the ineffective portion
of these hedges.

Interest expense pertaining to interest rate swaps for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was
$1,873, $2,919 and $3,223, respectively.

The Company would have paid approximately $560
and $2,480 to settle all outstanding swap agreements based
upon their aggregate fair values as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. This fair value is based upon estimates
received from financial institutions.
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Senior -Notes

On March 20, 2003, the Company issued $250,000 of 10%
Senior Notes which are due March 15, 2013. Interest is paid on
the Senior Notes each March 15 and September 15. The Senior
Notes are general unsecured, senior obligations of the
Company. The proceeds of the Senior Notes, prior to payment
of fees and expenses, were $246,158. The Senior Notes contain
incurrence covenants which, among other things, restrict the
Company’s future ability to incur future indebtedness and
liens, to apply the proceeds of asset sales freely, to merge or
undergo other changes of control and to pay dividends, and
required the Company to apply a portion of its cash flow dur-
ing 2003 to the reduction of its debt under our First, Second
and Third facilities. As of December 31, 2004, the discount on
the Senior Notes is $3,403. This discount is being amortized
as interest expense over the term of the Senior Notes using
the effective interest method. The Senior Notes are guaran-
teed by all of the Company’s present subsidiaries and future
“restricted” subsidiaries (all of which are 100% owned by
the Company). These guarantees are full and unconditional
and joint and several with the parent company General
Maritime Corporation. The parent company, General Maritime
Corporation, has no independent assets or operations.
Additionally, certain defaults on other debt instruments, such
as failure to pay interest or principal when due, are deemed to
be a default under the Senior Notes agreement.

In addition, the provisions of the Senior Notes require
that the proceeds from vessel sales, net of required debt pay-
ments made on senior indebtedness, be used to acquire addi-
tional assets within one vear from the dates of sale. If such
assels are not acquired, any excess proceeds, after reduction
of the indebtedness under the 2004 Credit Facility, are to be
used to repurchase Senior Notes. As of December 31, 2004,
such excess net proceeds pertaining to the four vessels sold
during August and October 2004 aggregate 335,938, which, if
not used to acquire additional assets through August 2005,
will be used to repurchase Senior Notes.

In accordance with the terms of its Senior Notes,
the Company cannot make cumulative “restricted payments”
in excess of the sum of (1) 30% of net income earned subse-
quent to December 31, 2002, (2) cash proceeds from common
stock issued subsequent to December 31, 2002, and (3) $25,000.
“Restricted payments” principally include dividends, purchases
of the Company’s common stock, and repayments of debt
subordinate to the Senior Notes prior to their maturity.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company is in compli-
ance with all of the financial covenants under its 2004 Credit
Facility and its Senior Notes.

Based on borrowings as of December 31, 2004,
aggregate maturities under the Senior Notes and the 2004
Credit Facility are as follows:

2004
Credit Senior
Facility Notes Total
Period Ending December 31,
2005 $ 40,000 $ — § 40,000
2006 40,000 — 40,000
2007 40,000 — 40,000
2008 40,000 — 40,000
2009 80,000 — 80,000
Thereafter — 250,000 250,000
$240,000  $250,000  $490,000

Interest expense under all of the Company’s credit
facilities, Senior Notes and interest rate swaps aggregated
$38,831, $33,505 and $14,747 for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instru-
ments are as follows:

December 31, 2004  December 31, 2003

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Cash $ 46921 $ 46,921 § 38,905 § 38,905
Floating rate debt 240,000 240,000 409,327 409,327
Senior Notes 246,597 288,750 246,343 282,500
Cash flow hedges— )
net liability position 560 560 2,480 2,480

The fair value of term loans and revolving credit facilities
is estimated based on current rates offered to the Company
for similar debt of the same remaining maturities. The carrying
value approximates the fair market value for the variable rate
loans. The fair value of interest rate swaps (used for purposes
other than trading) is the estimated amount the Company
would pay to terminate swap agreements at the reporting
date, taking into account current interest rates and the current
credit-worthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair value of
the Senior Notes has been determined based quoted market
prices as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.




10. REVENUE FROM TiME CHARTERS

Total revenue earned on time charters for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $87,944, $58,743 and
§28,293, respectively. Future minimum time charter revenue,
based on vessels committed to non-cancelable time charter
contracts as of December 31, 2004 will be $66,931 during
2005 and $1,501 during 2006.

11. LEASE PAYMENTS

In February 2004, the Company entered into an operating
lease for an aircraft. The lease has a term of five years and
requires monthly payments by the Company of §125.

In December 2004, the Company entered into a 15-year
lease for office space in New York, New York. The monthly
rental is as follows: Free rent from December 1, 2004 to
September 30, 2005, $110 per month from October 1, 2005
to September 30, 2010, $119 per month from October 1, 2010
to September 30, 20135, and $128 per month from October 1,
2015 to September 30, 2020. The monthly straight-line rental
expense from December 1, 2004 to September 30, 2020 is $113.

Future minimum rental payments on the above leases
for the next five years are as follows: 2005—8%1,829, 2006—
$2,817, 2007—$2,817, 2008—52,817, 2009—3$1,442,
thereafter—$15,800.

12. SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company earned
$108,034 from one customer which represented 15.4% of
voyage revenues. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, the Company did not earn 10% or more of its voyage
revenues from any single customer.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following are related party transactions not disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements:

The Company rents office space as its principal execu-
tive offices in a building currently leased by GenMar Realty
LLC, a company wholly owned by Peter C. Georgiopoulos, the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. There
is no lease agreement between the Company and GenMar
Realty LLC. The Company currently pays an occupancy fee on
a month to month basis in the amount of $35. For the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company’s
occupancy fees were $660 in each year.

During 2000, the Company loaned $486 to Mr. Peter C.
Georgiopoulos. This loan is included in prepaid expenses and
other current assets. This loan does not bear interest and is
due and payable on demand. The full amount of this loan was
outstanding as of December 31, 2004.

During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
the Company incurred legal services (primarily in connection
with vessel acquisitions in 2003 and 2004 as well as flag
changes of certain vessels in 2004) aggregating $284 and $249,
respectively, from the father of Mr. Peter Georgiopoulos. All of
the amounts due to the father of Mr. Georgiopoulos have been
paid as of December 31, 2004.

In July 2004, the Company paid $200 of professional
fees associated with its 2004 acquisitions described in Note 2
to American Marine Advisors, Inc., a company which has a
senior vice president that is also a member of the Company’s
board of directors.

14. SaviNGs Pran

In November 2001, the Company established a 401(k) Plan
(the “Plan”) which is available to full-time employees who
meet the Plan’s eligibility requirements. This Plan is a defined
contribution plan, which permits employees to make contri-
butions up to 13 percent of their annual salaries with the
Company matching up to the first three percent until April
2003 and six percent thereafter. The matching contribution
vests over a four year period, retroactive to date of hire. During
2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company’s matching contribution to
the Plan was $272, $178 and $90, respectively.

15. Stock OpTiON PrAN

On June 10, 2001, the Company adopted the General Maritime
Corporation 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. Under this plan the
Company’s compensation committee, another designated com-
mittee of the board of directors or the board of directors, may
grant a variety of stock-based incentive awards to employees,
directors and consultants whom the compensation committee
(or other committee or the board of directors) believes are
key to the Company's success. The compensation committee
may award incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options,
stock appreciation rights, dividend equivalent rights, restricted
stock, unrestricted stock and performance shares.

The aggregate number of shares of common stock
available for award under the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan is
2,900,000 shares. On June 12, 2001, the Company granted
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incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to
purchase 860,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price
of $18.00 per share (the initial public offering price) under the
provisions of the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. These options
expire in 10 years. Options to purchase 110,000 shares of
common stock vested immediately on June 12, 2001, the
date of the grant. 25% of the remaining 750,000 options
will vest on each of the first four anniversaries of the grant
date.- All options granted under this plan will vest upon a
change of control, as defined. These options will be incentive
stock options to the extent allowable under the Internal
Revenue Code. During 2003, 32,000 of these options
were forfeited.

On November 26, 2002, the Company’s chief execu-
tive officer and chief operating officer surrendered to the
Company outstanding options to purchase an aggregate of
590,000 shares of common stock. Also on November 26, 2002,
options to purchase 143,500 were granted to other employees
at an exercise price of $6.06 (the closing price on the date
of grant). These options will generally vest in four equal
installments on each of the first four anniversaries of the date
of grant. During 2003, 24,375 of these options were exercised
and 5,250 of these options were forfeited.

On May 5, 2003, the Company granted options to
purchase 50,000 shares of common stock to the Company’s
chief financial officer at an exercise price of $8.73 (the closing
price on the date of grant). These options were scheduled
to vest in four equal installments on each of the first four
anniversaries of the date of grant. During 2003, all of these
options were forfeited.

On June 5, 2003, the Company granted options to
purchase an aggregare of 12,500 shares of common stock
to five outside directors of the Company at an exercise price
of $9.98 (the closing price on the date of grant). These options
will vest in four equal installments on each of the first four
anniversaries of the date of grant.

On November 12, 2003, the Company granted options
to purchase an aggregate of 29,000 shares of common stock to
certain employees of the Company at an exercise price of
$14.58 (the closing price on the date of grant). These options
will vest in four equal installments on each of the first four
anniversaries of the date of grant.

On May 20, 2004, the Company granted options to
purchase an aggregate of 20,000 shares of common stock
to certain members of the Company’s board of directors at an
exercise price of $22.57 (the closing price on the date of
grant). These options will vest in four equal installments on
each of the first four anniversaries of the date of grant.

The Company follows the provisions of APB 25 to
account for its stock option plan. The Company provides
pro forma disclosure of net income and earnings per share as
if the accounting provision of SFAS No. 123 had been adopted.
Options granted are exercisable at prices equal to the fair
market value of such stock on the dates the options were
granted. The fair values of the options were determined on
the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
These options were valued based on the following assump-
tions: an estimated life of five years for all options granted,
volatility of 53%, 47%, 63% and 54% for options granted dur-
ing 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, risk free interest
rate of 3.85%, 3.5%, 4.0% and 5.5% for options granted during
2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and no dividend yield
for any options granted. The fair value of the 860,000 options
to purchase common stock granted on June 12, 2001 is $8.50
per share. The fair value of the 143,500 options to purchase
common stock granted on November 26, 2002 is $3.42 per
share. The fair value of the 50,000, 12,500 and 29,000 options
to purchase common stock granted on May 5, 2003, June 3,
2003 and November 12, 2003 is $3.95 per share, $4.52 per
share, and $6.61 per share, respectively. The fair value of the
20,000 options to purchase common stock granted on May 20,
2004 is $11.22 per share.




The following table summarizes stock option activity since the inception of option grants by the Company:

Number Weighted Average Weighted Average
of Options Exercise Price Fair Value
Outstanding, January 1, 2001 — — —
Granted 860,000 $18.00 $ 850
Exercised — — —
Forfeited _ _ —
Outstanding, December 31, 2001 860,000 $18.00 $ 830
Granted 143,500 $ 6.06 $ 3.42
Exercised — — —
Forfeited (590,000) $18.00 $ 850
Outstanding, December 31, 2002 413,500 $13.86 $ 6.74
Granted 91,500 $10.35 $ 4.87
Exercised (24,375) $ 6.06 $ 3.42
Forfeited (87,250) $12.82 $ 4.66
Outstanding, December 31, 2003 393,375 $13.75 $ 697
Granted 20,000 $22.57 $11.22
Exercised (186,850) $15.15 $ 723
Forfeited (13,500) $16.86 $ 7.82
Outstanding, December 31, 2004 213,025 $13.68 $ 7.13

The following table summarizes certain information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding,
December 31, 2004

Options Exercisable,
December 31, 2004

Number Weighted Average Number
Range of of Weighted Average Remaining of Weighted Average
Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Contractual Life Options Exercise Price
$ 6.06 70,875 $ 6.06 7.9 1,750 $§ 6.06
$ 9.98-314.58 32,250 $12.89 8.7 4,500 $12.02
$18.00-822.57 109,900 $18.83 6.9 44,100 $18.00
213,025 $13.68 7.5 50,350 $17.05

16. RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS

On November 26, 2002, the Company made grants of restricted
common stock in the amount of 500,000 shares to its Chief
Executive Officer, and 125,000 shares to its President and
Chief Operating Officer. The restrictions on these shares will
lapse seven years from the date of grant (or earlier upon the
death, disability, dismissal without cause or resignation for
good reason of the recipient or upon a change of control of
the Company). Upon grant of the restricted stock, an amount
of unearned compensation equivalent to the market value at the
date of grant was charged to Shareholders’ Equity. This charge
is being amortized to general and administrative expenses at a
rate of $541 per annum (pro rata for the remainder of 2002).

On November 12, 2003, the Company made grants of
restricted common stock in the amount of 155,000 shares to
certain officers and employees of the Company. Of this total,
73,000 restricted shares were granted to the chief executive
officer of the Company and 30,000 restricted shares were
granted to the president of General Maritime Management LLC
(“GMM™), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The
remaining 50,000 restricted shares were granted to other officers
and employees of the Company and GMM. The restrictions on
these shares lapse 20% on each anniversary date from the date
of grant and become fully vested after five years. Upon grant
of the restricted stock, an amount of unearned compensation
equivalent to the market value at the date of grant was charged
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to Shareholders’ Equity. Amortization of this charge, which is
included in general and administrative expenses, was $1,126
and $147 in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and will be $568,
$300 and $119 in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

17. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time the Company has been, and expects to
continue to be, subject to legal proceedings and claims in the
ordinary course of its business, principally personal injury
and property casualty claims. Such claims, even if lacking
merit, could result in the expenditure of significant financial
and managerial resources. The Company is not aware of any
legal proceedings or claims that it believes will have, individually
or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on the Company
or on its financial condition or results of operations.

18. SuBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 26, 2005 the Company announced that its board of
directors has initiated a cash dividend policy. Under the policy,
the Company plans to declare quarterly dividends to sharehold-
ers in April, July, October and February of each year based on
its EBITDA after interest expense and reserves, as established
by the board of directors. The Company expects to declare its
initial quarterly dividend following the announcement of its
first quarter 2005 results during the fourth week of April 2005.

The indenture of the Company’s Senior Notes gener-
ally allows the Company to pay dividends and other “restricted
payments” up to an amount equal to 50% of the cumulative
net income earned since the first quarter of 2003 plus an addi-
tional $25,000. The Company is currently exploring various
options for ensuring its ability to pay dividends as defined by
the new dividend policy, and will review available equity and
debt financing alternatives from time to time. Any dividends
paid will be subject to the consent of the Company’s lenders
under its 2004 Credit Facility and applicable provisions of
Marshall Islands law.

On February 9, 2005, the Company made grants of
restricted common stock in the amount of 304,500 shares to
certain officers and employees of the Company. Of this total,
150,000, 10,000 and 10,000 restricted shares were granted to
the chief executive officer, chief financial officer and chief
administrative officer, respectively, of the Company and
50,000 restricted shares were granted to the president of
GMM. The remaining 84,500 restricted shares were granted
to other officers and employees of the Company and GMM.
The restrictions on the 150,000 shares granted to the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company will lapse on November 16,
2014. The restrictions on the remaining 154,500 shares will
lapse as to 20% of these shares on November 16, 2005 and as
to 20% of these shares on November 16 of each of the four
years thereafter, and will become fully vested on November 16,
2009. Upon grant of the restricted stock, an amount of
unearned compensation equivalent to the market value at the
date of grant, or $14,631, will be charged to Shareholders’
Equity. Amortization of this charge, which will be included
in general and administrative expenses, will be $3,995,
$2,716, $1,913, $1,398, and $1,010 in 2005, 20006, 2007, 2008
and 2009, respectively. Amortization subsequent to 2009 will
be $3,599.

On February 4, 2005, one of the Company’s Suezmax
vessels, the Genmar Kestrel, was involved in a collision with
the Singapore-flag tanker which necessitated the trans-shipment
of the Genmar Kestrel's cargo and drydocking the vessel for
repairs. The incident resulted in the leakage of some oil to the
sea. Due to a combination of prompt clean up efforts, a light
cargo onboard at the time of collision and favorable weather
conditions, the Company believes that the incident resulted in
minimal environmental damage and expects that substantially
all of the liabilities associated with the incident will be
covered by insurance.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting. General
Maritime Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting
is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Our internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that:

e Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of General Maritime Corporation;

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of General Maritime
Corporation’s management and directors; and

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or dispo-
sition of our assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree or compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of General
Maritime Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004. In making this assess-
ment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on
our assessment and those criteria, management believes that
General Maritime Corporation maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.

General Maritime Corporation’s independent regis-
tered public accounting firm has audited and issued their
report on management’s assessment of General Maritime
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting, which
appears below.
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
General Maritime Corporation
New York, New York

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the
accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting, that General Maritime Corporation and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
based on Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtain-
ing an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting
is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers,
or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the
company’s board of directors, management, and other person-
nel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(D pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispo-
sitions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to per-
mit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the
Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2004 of the Company and our report
dated March 14, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York
March 14, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIrRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
General Maritime Corporation
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of General Maritime Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company™)
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and sig-
nificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

General Maritime Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31,
2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the crite-
ria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 14, 2005 expressed
an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 14, 2005
New York, New York

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

MARKET INFORMATION, HOLDERS AND DIVIDENDS

Our common stock has traded on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “GMR” since our initial public
offering on June 12, 2001. The following table sets forth for
the periods indicated the high and low prices for the common
stock as of the close of trading as reported on the New York
Stock Exchange:

High Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004
1st Quarter $25.55 $17.61
2nd Quarter $27.58 $18.51
3rd Quarter $35.53 $24.61
4th Quarter $49.21 $33.86

As of December 31, 2004, there were approximately
33 holders of record of our common stock.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends
on our capital stock. On January 26, 2005 our board of

directors initiated a cash dividend policy. Under the policy,
we plan to declare quarterly dividends to shareholders in
April, July, October and February of each year based on our
EBITDA after interest expense and reserves, as established
by the board of directors. We expect to declare our initial
quarterly dividend following the announcement of its first
quarter 2005 results during the fourth week of April 2005.
Our 2004 Credit Facility and indenture for our Senior Notes
impose limitations or prohibitions on the payment of divi-
dends without the lenders’ consent or in conjunction with
a subsidiary’s failure to comply with various financial
covenants. We expect to consider options to redeem, amend
or defease the outstanding Senior Notes, if necessary, before
the indenture interferes with our ability to pay dividends in
the future.

We did not repurchase any of our outstanding equity
securities during the year ended December 31, 2004.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Stock LisTING

General Maritime Corporation’s common stock is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol GMR. The Company
has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock
but currently has plans to do so as per their February 23, 2005
press release. As of April 3, 2005, General Maritime Corporation had
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